Public Document Pack

AB

CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING INEQUALITIES
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MONDAY 10 NOVEMBER 2014
7.00 PM
Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations
At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda,
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council.
Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in
relation to any items under consideration.

3.

Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions
The decision notice for each decision will bear the date on which it is
published and will specify that the decision may then be implemented on the
expiry of 3 working days after the publication of the decision (not including
the date of publication), unless a request for call-in of the decision is
received from any two Members of a Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny
Commissions.
If a request for call-in of a decision is received,
implementation of the decision remains suspended for consideration by the
relevant Scrutiny Committee or Commission.

4.

The Connecting Families Programme

3-6

5.

Pupil Premium - Overview

7 - 30

6.

Effectiveness of Education and Training Provision for 16-19 Year Olds
in Peterborough - Ofsted Review

31 - 58

7.

Recruitment and Retention of Social Workers

59 - 62

8.

Directors Report for Social Care Practice and Performance

63 - 72

9.

Scrutiny in a Day - One Year On

73 - 76

10.

Forward Plan of Executive Decisions

77 - 96

11.

Work Programme 2014/2015

12.

Date of Next Meeting

97 - 102

Monday 5 January 2015

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take
photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the
public. A protocol on this facility is available at:
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%
20Recording.pdf

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms. Some of the
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact
Paulina Ford on 01733 452508 as soon as possible.
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral. The duty Beadle will assume
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Committee Members:
Councillors: S Day (Chair), B Rush, G Nawaz, M Jamil, J Shearman, B Saltmarsh and D Fower
Substitutes: Councillors: R Ferris, F Fox, I Walsh and A Shaheed
Education Co-optees: Paul Rossi (Roman Catholic Church Representative),
Miranda Robinson,(Church of England Representative),
Tricia Pritchard, (Director of Education & Training), Diocese of Ely
Stewart Francis (Parent Governor Representative)
Alistair Kingsley – Independent Co-opted Member
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Paulina Ford on telephone 01733
452508 or by email – paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk

CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING Agenda Item No. 4
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
10 NOVEMBER 2014

Public Report

Report of the Executive Director of Communities and Targeted Services
Contact Officer(s) – Hayley Thornhill
Contact Details - 864112

THE CONNECTING FAMILIES PROGRAMME
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

To update the Committee on the current phase of the Connecting Families programme and
proposals for the expanded programme, planned for implementation in 2015.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

Members are asked to scrutinise the progress made on the Connecting Families programme
relevant to this Committee by providing challenge where necessary and to suggest ideas and
initiatives to support the continued delivery of priorities within programme.

3.

LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY

3.1

The Sustainable Community Strategy aims to deliver a bigger and better Peterborough, through
improving the quality of life for all. The Connecting Families programme supports the
aspirations of the whole Sustainable Community Strategy.

4.

BACKGROUND

4.1

The Connecting Families Programme is the name given in Peterborough to the national
Troubled Families programme. Troubled families are those that have problems and often cause
problems to the community around them, putting high costs on the public sector. In December
2011, the Prime Minister launched a new programme to turn around the lives of 120,000
troubled families in England by 2015.

4.2

Troubled families often have a whole host of agencies involved with them, often focussing on
the individuals within that family, which can bring its own problems as families become
confused by overlapping professionals, assessments and appointments. The work is often not
co-ordinated well and there is a duplication of activity and effort. Some of the starkest evidence
for this collective failure to properly help families is to be found in the frequency of problems
which are transmitted from one generation of the same family to another.

4.3

The aims of the Troubled Families Programme are to get children back into school, reduce
youth crime and anti-social behaviour, put adults on a path back to work and bring down the
amount public services currently spend on them. All 152 upper-tier local authorities in England
are taking part in the programme and have agreed the number of troubled families in their area
that they will work with.

4.4

The Government made £448 million available to councils on a payment-by-results basis. This
represents a contribution of up to £4,000 per family, around 40% of the estimated costs of
actions needed to turn a family around. Funding has come from a number of departments
including Communities and Local Government, Education, Work and Pensions and Health, with
full payment being made only when results are achieved. The other 60% will be covered by
local authorities and other local partners who all benefit from the savings that result. A one-off
average investment of £4,500 in work with each family is expected to reduce the annual

3

£15,000 cost of dealing with their problems, by supporting families to access work, reducing
anti-social behaviour, improving poor school attendance and reducing criminality.
4.5

For the purposes of qualifying to be part of the Connecting Families Programme, families are
those who meet three of the following four criteria:
• Are involved in youth crime or anti-social behaviour
• Have children who are regularly truanting or not in school
• Have an adult on out of work benefits
• Cause high costs to the taxpayer

4.6

The outcomes set out by Government required to achieve a payment by results are:
• 60% reduction in anti-social behaviour across the family in the last 6
months and/or a 33% reduction in youth offending
• Each child in the family having fewer than three fixed term exclusions
and/or less than 15% unauthorised absence in the last 3 school terms
• At least one adult in the family to have either volunteered for the Work
Programme or be attached to the European Social Fund (ESF) provision
in the last 6 months
• At least one adult in the family moving off out-of-work benefits into
continuous employment in that last 6 months

5.

KEY ISSUES

5.1

In Peterborough, the Connecting Families programme has two component parts; the first being
assigning a dedicated worker to engage with a whole family on all of its problems, such as
ensuring that the children attend school, appointments are met and appropriate services are
accessed. Crucially, all of the public services involved with members of a family are coordinated and the demand on them reduced.

5.2

This more targeted and focused work, with the most complex families, is led by a range of
Connectors from a number statutory and non-statutory agencies. For example, Drink Sense
and Cross Keys Homes both provide Connectors to the programme. These expert family
support workers will be allocated families whose primary needs are around substance misuse
and housing, respectively. The Connectors come together in a virtual team environment, where
they can support each other with specialist knowledge and share good practice.

5.3

The current programme has identified a cross over between families potentially caught by the
benefit cap and those meeting the criteria for the Connecting Families programme: budgeting
issues are highly relevant to many of the families the programme is working with. We are
working closely with Jobcentre Plus to better understand the context of both welfare reform and
welfare to work regime delivery and thereby support progress of individual troubled family
members towards work.

5.4

The second part of the programme involves the analysis team in the Communities and
Targeted Services trawling historic information from a wide range of data sources including
school attendance data, school exclusions, children in Pupil Referral Units, Youth Offending
Service data, Police data, Children’s Social Care data and information from Registered Social
Landlords to evidence where services across the city have worked with families who meet the
troubled families criteria and achieved the results needed to qualify for a payment by results.

4

5.5

In terms of the overall progress of the project, the table below shows the number of families
who have been ‘turned around’ according to the DCLG criteria1:

Improvements made by the family
Education or ASB improvement
Adult in the family returned to work
Adult in the family has made progress to work2
Total

Number of families
turned around
211
54
5
270 of 450 families
(60.0% towards target)

Once families have been ‘turned around’, this does not necessarily mean that support from the
family will be removed. The way the programme is designed, by building capacity throughout
the City, rather than relying on statutory only organisations, means there is capacity for families
to receive ongoing support.
6

THE FUTURE OF THE PROGRAMME

6.1

Due to the nationally recognised success of the programme, a commitment to Troubled
Families’ Phase 2 has been announced by the Government. This will extend the programme
for another five years, committing a new £200 million to the budget, and working with a further
1,500 families in the City. The expanded programme is broader than the current one and will
focus on families who are:
•
•
•
•
•

affected by domestic violence
with vulnerable children
with a range of mental and physical health problems
at high risk of worklessness
involved in crime from generation to generation.

6.2

The programme will still focus on families with multiple problems (at least two of the above), but
gives areas more flexibility to draw from a range of indicators to find the families of greatest
concern and cost and, crucially, by intervening earlier, this will reduce the need to access
specialist services later on.

6.3

Peterborough has been invited to be an early starter onto the new programme, assuming we
can evidence that we are working with and have ‘turned around’ 65% of families from our
current cohort by 31st October 2014. This means that Peterborough can start to deliver the new
programme from 1st January 2015 and can expand the support we are currently offering to
1,500 families over the next five years.

7.

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

None

8.

CONSULTATION

8.1

None

1

th

Information up to 16 October 2014
Progress to work is defined as one adult in the family has either volunteered for the Work Programme or attached
to the European Social Fund provision in the last 12 months.
2

5

9.

NEXT STEPS

9.1

Once we have had confirmation from DCLG that we have formally been accepted as an early
starter onto the expanded programme, work will begin to develop the new programme to ensure
that it works with the most complex and in need families in the City.

10.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

10.1

None

11.

APPENDICES
None

6

CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 5

10 NOVEMBER 2014

Public Report

Report of the Executive Director of Children’s Services
Contact Officer(s) – Jonathan Lewis – Assistant Director – Education, Resources and Corporate
Property
Contact Details – jonathan.lewis@peterborough.gov.uk / 01733 863912

PUPIL PREMIUM - OVERVIEW
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

This report was requested by the Scrutiny group representative committee to give an oversight of
the Pupil Premium Grant (PPG) – both the national context and some information on PPG in
Peterborough.
A number of actions are suggested about how schools and the council are
intending to continue to target improvements in outcomes for children who qualify for the PPG.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

The committee is asked to review the report and proposed actions and ask for any further clarity /
outcomes they wish to explore.

3.

LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY

3.1

Single Delivery Plan - Programme 1 – Creating jobs through growth and improved skills and
education.

4.

BACKGROUND

4.1

The PPG was introduced in April 2011 and is allocated to schools to improve outcomes for pupils
who have been registered for free school meals, are Looked After or are children of Service
Families. Data collected regarding these outcomes refer only to the first two of these groups, with
the first being by far the largest group.

4.2

The PPG is additional funding to help schools to close the attainment gap between children from
low income and other disadvantaged families and their peers. Evidence from national attainment
and achievement data indicates that many children eligible to receive free school meals and those
that are looked after are not achieving expected levels of progress in reading writing and
mathematics and a significant proportion are at risk of truancy or exclusion.
Eligibility

4.3

In order to qualify for the PPG, a child has had to be eligible for free school meals. This is a
measure of deprivation which is means tested currently through the following definition -

4.4

A pupil whose parent/guardian receives one or more of the following benefits is entitled to a free
school meal:
• Income Support (IS)
• Income Based Job Seekers Allowance (JSA(IB))
• Employment and Support Allowance (Income Related) (ESA (IR))
• Child Tax Credit (CTC), provided you do not also receive Working Tax Credit
• and have an annual income, as assessed by the Inland Revenue, that does not exceed

7

£16,190
Guarantee Credit element of State Pension Credit
Support under Part 6 of the Immigration and Asylum Act 1999
Children who receive IS or IBJSA in their own right are also entitled to free school meals.
•
•

Funding levels
4.5

The levels of funding have increased significantly since its inception and the history of the rates
are shown in the table below -

Pupils receiving FSM Primary
Pupils receiving FSM Secondary
LAC
Service Children
Children adopted from care, and
children who have left care under a
special guardianship or residence order

2011/12
£
488
488
488
200
N/A

2012/13
£
623
623
623
250
N/A

2013/14
£
953
900
900
300
N/A

2014/15
£
1,300
935
1,900
300
1,900

4.6

Appendix 1 shows the levels of funding received by Peterborough annually. The grant total of
£11.4m for 2014/15 represents around 8% of the total funding for schools in that year. Appendix
2 outlines the breakdown of schools funding per pupil and how pupil premium funding is
distributed. The funding is shown as a net figure and no activity data is shown as numbers in
schools are small and may identified those who have applied for FSM.

4.7

In 2011/12, It was only children claiming a FSM in January that were eligible for the grant. The
definition was widened in 2012/13 to include any child in school who had claimed a FSM in the last
6 years regardless of whether they are still claiming. 6 years was set as a threshold to allow for
the fact that a lot of pupils were claiming in primary schools and not claiming when they
transitioned into secondary schools.

4.8

A separate element of the pupil premium funding has been for establishing a summer school for
pupils transferring from primary to secondary school. Summer schools provide an excellent
opportunity for secondary schools to help disadvantaged new pupils understand what and how
they will be studying in Key Stage 3. It is also an opportunity for schools to help disadvantaged
pupils who are behind in key areas such as literacy and numeracy to catch up with their peers.

4.9

The DfE run the programme using an opt-in model, so it is for schools to decide whether they take
part. We would encourage eligible schools to get involved because:
• Overall, disadvantaged pupils currently underperform in education compared to their peers,
with attainment gaps widening as they progress through school, especially at secondary
school.
• Summer schools offer a specific intervention at a crucial stage of education that can help
pupils to start secondary education ready to learn.
• Evidence shows that there can be a dip in performance for pupils as they transfer from primary
school to secondary school. Pupils falling behind at this stage sometimes never catch up.

4.10 Schools will receive £250 (one week summer school) or £500 (two week summer school) for every
Ever 6 FSM/LAC pupil moving to the school in Year 7 who confirms that they want to attend the
summer school and who the school delivers a summer school place for. In Peterborough in 2014,
9 secondary schools and 2 special schools operated summer schools and this brought in funding
of £125k supporting around 330 pupils. The highest level of funding was £56k supporting 112
pupils in school. One special school had 3 children in their summer school.
Accountability
4.11 The Pupil Premium funding can be spent in a number of different ways and there is no required
format, however the benefits must be quantifiable. Schools are expected to publish details on their

8

websites of their PPG allocation and their planned spend for the year ahead. They are also
expected to publish a statement for the previous year confirming the funding, how the money has
been spent and the impact that this funding has had on pupil outcomes.
4.12 During Ofsted inspections there is a particular emphasis on how well gaps are narrowing both
within the school and in comparison to national trends with specific reference to children who are
entitled to PPG funding. Schools need to ensure that the relevant pupils are clearly identified in the
school’s tracking system so that evidence of their performance is clear. They will be expected to
identify individual and whole school initiatives that have impacted on individual outcomes and how
funding has been used to improve these outcomes.
4.13 The Ofsted framework states that when evaluating the effectiveness of leaders, managers and
governors, inspectors should gather evidence about the use of the PPG in relation to the following
key issues:
• the level of pupil premium funding received by the school in the current academic year and
levels of funding received in previous academic years
• how the school has spent the pupil premium and why it has decided to spend it in the way
it has
• any differences made to the learning and progress of disadvantaged pupils as shown by
performance data and inspection evidence.
4.14 To show the focus on PPG by Ofsted, our most recent Ofsted inspection at Welbourne Primary
school in September 2014 (rated good) made the following comments around pupil premium –
•
•

•

•

•

The progress made by those entitled to pupil premium funding has narrowed the gaps
between their performance and that of other pupils nationally.
Funding available through the pupil premium is used effectively to help eligible pupils to
take a full part in school life, and benefit, where appropriate, from specific material
resources and additional help from adults. The impact of this is evident in the narrowing of
the gaps in achievement between eligible pupils and others over the past year, and the
higher standards now achieved by disadvantaged pupils.
Governors track finances well and lead the school in deciding how to spend additional
money, such as that to support pupils eligible for the pupil premium or to extend sports and
physical education opportunities.
Teachers’ use of assessment information and other data is good and improved since the
previous inspection. They are more aware of how different groups are learning in lessons,
and modify their practice to make sure that everyone does well. This has had a very
positive impact on the progress made and levels achieved, particularly by those pupils
eligible to support from the pupil premium.
In 2013, the attainment of Year 6 pupils supported through the pupil premium funding in
mathematics, reading and writing was between one and two terms behind pupils nationally
and a term behind other pupils in their year group in reading and mathematics, although
they did better than their peers in writing. Last year, the school significantly narrowed the
gap between the attainment of these pupils and others, especially in reading and
mathematics, because of the continuing focus on the progress these pupils make.

4.15 From 1st September 2012, the DfE requires schools to publish online information about how much
Pupil Premium they receive and how they have used it. This is documented in The School
Information (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2012 as -‘The amount of the school’s allocation
from the Pupil Premium grant in respect of the current academic year; details of how it is intended
that the allocation will be spent; details of how the previous academic year’s allocation was spent,
and the effect of this expenditure on the educational attainment of those pupils at the school in
respect of whom grant funding was allocated’.
4.16 An outstanding example from a Peterborough Primary school, Hampton Hargate, is shown in
appendix 3 which meets these requirements for publication. Appendix 4 is a policy developed by
the school on their approach to pupil premium – this again is excellent practice.
4.17 Pupil premium has been a focus area of the school improvement team and also the work of the

9

school to school support arrangements in triad groupings.
5.

KEY ISSUES

5.1

Peterborough has a relatively high level of pupils accessing PPG funding although due to issues
around claiming free schools meals, the numbers are probably slightly depressed from the actual
level of deprivation in the city. We currently do not have any detailed data relating to 2014
outcomes but the tables below show the position of free school meal children against national
positions. Pupil premium data varies slightly from FSM data due to the ever 6 methodology but
the data below gives a good proxy on performance. Outcomes of PPG children have historically
been poor although recent years show signs of improvement Primary

5.2

5.3

Y1, Y2 and Y6 (Key Stage 1 and
Key Stage 2)

2013
FSM
Pboro

2013
FSM
Nat

Year 1 Phonics Screening Check

50

57

2013 All
2013
Pupils
FSM
Gap
Gap
Pb
v Pb
v
Nat
Nat
-7
-9

Year 2 L2b+ Reading
Year 2 L2b+ Writing
Year 2 L2b+ Maths

61
46
62

67
52
66

-6
-6
-4

-5
-8
-6

Year 6 L4+ R,W&M
Year 6 EP Reading
Year 6 EP Writing
Year 6 EP Maths

60
83
89
82

64
84
89
84

-4
-1
0
-2

-4
-1
+1
-1

There is a gap to national but this is broadly in line with the overall results at the time. The gaps at
KS2 are lower than those earlier in the education system. The challenge about standards on entry
and in the early stages of primary is one that has been recognised by the DfE. In an
announcement in October, the DfE is setting up an early years PPG for 3 and 4 year olds. This
will give £300 for up to 900 pupils in Peterborough who meet the free school meal criteria.
Secondary

5.4

Year 11
(Key Stage 4)

5+ A* - C incl 26
Eng&Maths

38

2012
2013
FSM
FSM Pb
Gap
Pb
v
Nat
-12
34

70

70

00

74

71

+3

+1

+4

Expected Prog 42
English

54

-12

53

56

-3

-6

-2

Expected Prog 37
Maths

51

-14

47

54

-7

-8

-4

5+ A* - C

5.5

2012
FSM Pb

2012
FSM
Nat

2013
FSM
Nat

41

2013
2012 All 2013 All
FSM
Gap
Gap
Gap
Pb
v Pb
v
Pb
v Nat
Nat
Nat
-7
-9
-4

Whilst the size of the gap has fallen, it remains significant and an area of ongoing focus. In 2012,
in a report by Ofsted called ‘Unseen children’ report, Peterborough’s outcomes at GCSE were the

10

lowest nationally. However, in this year’s update, ‘The Pupil Premium – update’ Ofsted
commented that ‘many of the lowest attaining local authorities for free school meal eligible pupils
have improved their performance. Peterborough and West Berkshire are two of the most
improved, increasing their attainment for this group by 10 and nine percentage points,
respectively, in 2013’.
5.6

Peterborough increased by 10.3% on % of FSM eligible students attaining GCSE benchmark – the
third highest increase nationally. Whilst still in the lowest quartile, this is a significant increase
from 2012, when we were in the bottom quartile.
Improving outcomes

5.7

In order to raise the profile, all heads were invited to meet with John Dunford, the government
appointed pupil premium champion in February. He gave an overview of the legislation and
covered best practice and the future direction of government policy in this area. Since this time a
lot of work has been ongoing including the following •
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Continue to support the Achievement for All programme which targets pupils
underperforming including SEN and pupil premium and focused in on improvement.
The formation of a pupil premium leads group for secondary school, facilitating the sharing
of effective practice and bringing together lead teachers from our secondary schools.
Continuation of our plans to form a similar group for primary schools, which we hope to
have operational by November.
Supporting the development of pupil premium champion in every school.
Focus on sharing good practice regarding the effective use of pupil premium grant in
primary schools including collating and publishing schools pupil premium statements.
Improving data analysis, tracking and predictions on pupil premium cohorts.
Focus on pupil premium in schools causing concern and in local authority reviews of
schools
Ensuring pupil premium has a high profile with heads, teachers, governors and parents.
Facilitating events to bring best practice from across the country including presentation
from heads which have won pupil premium awards.
Focus schools on academic research – appendix 5 outlines some of the characteristics of
schools with good pupil premium outcomes and those who underperform.
Ensuring schools are aware of materials and resources available for them including those
produced by the Education Endowment Foundation (EEF) and the excellent Sutton Trust
toolkit which evaluates interventions based upon their costs and success.

5.8

We also continue to try and encourage schools to sign pupils up for free school meals to ensure
qualification for pupil premium. We are concerned about the impact of the Universal Infant Free
School meal programme which may mean parents don’t apply as all infant get a meal provided for
free.

6.

IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no legal or financial implications to this report.

7.

CONSULTATION

7.1

Not applicable.

8.

NEXT STEPS

8.1

It is proposed that pupil premium features as a focus on the education focus group.

9.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act
1985

11

9.1

None

10.

APPENDICES

10.1 Appendix 1 – Funding number and rates for Pupil Premium 2011/12 to 2014/15 for Peterborough
Appendix 2 – Funding levels for Peterborough schools including pupil premium 2014/15
Appendix 3 – Pupil Premium Statement – Hampton Hargate
Appendix 4 – Pupil Premium Policy – Hampton Hargate
Appendix 5 – Ofsted - How schools are spending the funding successfully to maximise
achievement

12

Appendix 1 – Funding for Pupil Premium in Peterborough since 2011/12

No of
pupils
Ever 6 Pupils Primay*
Ever 6 Pupils Secondary*

5,289

2011/12
Unit
Allocation
Value
488

No of
pupils

2,580,788 8,167

2012/13
Unit
Allocation
Value
623

No of
pupils

5,087,792 8,963

2013/14
Unit
Allocation
Value
900

No of
pupils

8,066,700 5,756

2014/15
Unit
Allocation
Value
1,300

7,483,350

3,747

935

3,503,153

Service Pupils**

297

200

59,400

257

250

64,250

257

300

77,100

288

300

86,400

LAC

184

488

89,792

188

623

117,124

188

900

169,200

212

1,900

402,800

Total

13
*Includes Academies
**Excludes Academies

2,729,980

5,269,166

8,313,000

11,475,703

Appendix 2 – Breakdown of Schools Funding including allocation of Pupil Premium

School Name

Total
Schools
Block
Allocation

Allocation
per Pupil
(Schools
Block
only)

Pupil
Premium

Allocation
per Pupil
(including
Pupil
Premium)

Total
Number
of
Pupils

Abbotsmede Primary School

£1,639,000

£4,466

£202,800

£5,019

367

All Saints' CofE (Aided) Primary School

£1,476,000

£3,718

£126,000

£4,035

397

£586,000

£4,014

£30,100

£4,220

146

Barnack CofE (Controlled) Primary School
Bishop Creighton Primary School

£989,000

£4,475

£119,600

£5,016

221

£1,065,000

£4,193

£133,200

£4,717

254

Brewster Avenue Infant School

£749,000

£4,256

£69,500

£4,651

176

Castor CofE Primary School

£608,000

£4,000

£26,000

£4,171

152

Discovery Primary School

£1,854,000

£3,784

£237,800

£4,269

490

Dogsthorpe Infant School

£1,131,000

£4,236

£118,600

£4,680

267

Dogsthorpe Junior School

£1,431,000

£4,089

£223,600

£4,727

350

Eye CofE Primary School

£1,265,000

£3,614

£106,200

£3,918

350

Eyrescroft Primary School

£1,529,000

£3,803

£216,450

£4,342

402

Fulbridge Academy

£2,524,000

£3,842

£286,000

£4,277

657

Gladstone Primary School

£1,903,000

£4,296

£185,200

£4,714

443

Gunthorpe Primary School

£1,483,000

£3,997

£197,200

£4,529

371

Hampton Hargate Primary School

£1,956,000

£3,298

£154,000

£3,558

593

Hampton Vale Primary School

£1,796,000

£3,351

£169,800

£3,668

536

Heritage Park Primary School

£824,000

£3,943

£44,600

£4,156

209

£1,552,000

£4,264

£244,400

£4,935

364

Braybrook Primary School

Highlees Primary School
John Clare Primary School

£452,000

£4,475

£7,100

£4,546

101

Leighton Primary School

£1,473,000

£3,856

£240,700

£4,486

382

Longthorpe Primary School

£1,539,000

£3,682

£84,000

£3,883

418

Middleton Primary School

£1,307,000

£4,110

£181,300

£4,680

318

Nene Valley Primary School

£1,018,000

£3,636

£33,100

£3,754

280

Newark Hill Primary School

£1,784,000

£3,772

£175,500

£4,143

473

Newborough CofE Primary School

£773,000

£3,771

£33,400

£3,934

205

Northborough Primary School

£740,000

£3,737

£37,700

£3,928

198

Norwood Primary School

£774,000

£3,909

£50,700

£4,165

198

Oakdale Primary School

£776,000

£3,804

£41,900

£4,009

204

Old Fletton Primary School

£1,269,000

£3,788

£142,100

£4,212

335

Ormiston Meadows Academy

£1,029,000

£4,166

£170,600

£4,857

247

Orton Wistow Primary School

£1,089,000

£3,393

£52,000

£3,555

321

Parnwell Primary School

£1,202,000

£4,262

£174,800

£4,882

282

Paston Ridings Primary School

£1,989,000

£4,059

£308,100

£4,688

490

£738,000

£3,746

£26,900

£3,883

197

Peakirk-Cum-Glinton CofE Primary School
Queen's Drive Infant School

£1,068,000

£4,377

£74,100

£4,681

244

Ravensthorpe Primary School

£949,000

£4,314

£107,400

£4,802

220

Sacred Heart RC Primary School

£850,000

£4,067

£31,500

£4,218

209

Southfields Primary School
St Augustine's CofE (Voluntary Aided) Junior
School

£1,645,000

£3,697

£212,500

£4,174

445

£803,000

£3,995

£90,800

£4,447

201

St Botolph's Church of England Primary School

£1,352,000

£3,539

£66,500

£3,713

382

14

School Name

Total
Schools
Block
Allocation

Allocation
per Pupil
(Schools
Block
only)

Pupil
Premium

Allocation
per Pupil
(including
Pupil
Premium)

Total
Number
of
Pupils

St John's Church School

£1,119,000

£4,320

£199,800

£5,092

259

St Thomas More RC Primary School

£1,646,000

£4,044

£131,300

£4,367

407

£794,000

£4,135

£108,200

£4,699

192

£2,603,000

£4,219

£288,600

£4,687

617

£706,000

£3,755

£54,400

£4,045

188

Thorpe Primary School

£1,650,000

£3,957

£99,100

£4,194

417

Watergall Primary School

£1,337,000

£4,178

£202,100

£4,810

320

Stanground St Johns CofE Primary School
The Beeches Primary School
The Duke of Bedford Primary School

Welbourne Primary School

£740,000

£4,654

£92,600

£5,236

159

Welland Academy

£1,411,000

£4,522

£217,400

£5,219

312

Werrington Primary School

£1,459,000

£3,499

£77,200

£3,684

417

West Town Primary School

£1,295,000

£4,331

£114,400

£4,714

299

William Law CofE (Aided) Primary School

£2,078,000

£3,330

£187,400

£3,630

624

Winyates Primary School

£904,000

£4,543

£172,900

£5,412

199

Wittering Primary School

£1,057,000

£3,421

£97,300

£3,736

309

£993,000

£4,355

£115,700

£4,863

228

Arthur Mellows Village College

£6,017,000

£4,586

£209,480

£4,746

1,312

Hampton College

£4,265,000

£4,880

£205,225

£5,115

874

Jack Hunt School

£8,080,000

£5,615

£483,995

£5,951

1,439

Ken Stimpson Community School

£4,968,000

£5,724

£291,615

£6,059

868

Nene Park Academy

£4,021,000

£5,195

£228,838

£5,491

774

Ormiston Bushfield Academy

£4,209,000

£5,734

£281,765

£6,118

734

St John Fisher Catholic High School

£3,669,000

£5,976

£265,205

£6,408

614

Stanground Academy

£5,537,000

£5,011

£315,060

£5,296

1,105

The King's (The Cathedral) School

£3,890,000

£4,791

£69,030

£4,876

812

The Voyager Academy

£6,463,000

£5,940

£462,323

£6,365

1,088

Thomas Deacon Academy

£9,410,000

£5,281

£504,213

£5,564

1,782

Woodston Primary School

15

Appendix 3 – Example Pupil Premium Statement
Hampton Hargate Primary School - Pupil Premium: 2014/15
Context of School
Hampton Hargate Primary School is a three form entry school in Peterborough. We cater for Reception
to Year 6 and provide extended provision from 7.45am to 6.00pm each day.
We encourage and promote high aspirations and ambitions for our pupils and we believe that no child
should be ignored. We strongly believe that all children should be given the opportunity to achieve and
our job is to encourage and extend their passion and thirst for knowledge, resulting in pupils
realising their full potential.
We are committed to ensuring that Pupil Premium Funding is spent to maximum effect.
Key facts
•
•

•

•
•
•

Our school community promotes and encourages high expectations of all pupils
Outcomes at the end of Key Stage 2 in July 2014 remained consistently high and Pupil Premium
children have closed or reduced the gap significantly since 2011 to now be inline or above
National.
Ofsted (Sept 2010) noted: “This is a good school which has made great strides in its provision
since the last inspection. As a result of better and more consistent teaching, pupils make good
progress throughout the school. In particular, teachers now routinely plan different work for
different ability groups, making increasingly good use of the school’s assessment data to do so.
This ensures all make similarly good progress, including those with special educational needs
and/or disabilities, and those who start the school at different times.”
We are engaged in and committed to partnership working with a wide range of schools and
organisations which strongly enhances our provision and supports our local community.
The school has excellent partnerships with a range of agencies and works extremely effectively
with external agencies to support all pupils and families in need of help.
Accreditations reflecting our best practice include: SFVS – School Financial Value Standard;
Healthy School Mark; Core Offer in Extended School Provision; Stephen Lawrence Award; ECO
Bronze Award; Inclusion Charter Mark

Recent Initiatives / Improvements:
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Further improved performance at KS2
Increased percentages of children working at or above age related levels
Gap between key groups has been significantly narrowed in all Key Stages
Improved phonics scores and continue to be well above National
Team Leaders established across each phase (5/6, 3/4, 1/2, Rec) continue to improve quality of
teaching, ensure greater consistency in practice and expectations thus reducing any within
school variance
Earlier intervention in place in years 1/2, 3/4 and EYFS
Early identification and intervention for pupils new to our school
Outstanding behaviour achieved through revision of whole school approach - introduction of “It’s
Good to be Green” scheme spring 2014
Booster clubs set up across KS2 which take place after school, during lunchtimes Easter holidays
and 'Saturday school'
New ICT infrastructure, including the use of net books, chrome books and ipads allows ICT to be
delivered in classes as well as new touch screens in Years 2,3 and 4.
Reorganised library and teaching space to support teaching of reading and 1:1 / small group
interventions and extensive new reading initiatives and resources
Outstanding safeguarding procedures and systems (Ofsted September 2010)
Increased uptake of extended school provision
Increased sports provision in school time and after school clubs

16

•
•
•
•
•

Increased musical instrument opportunities
Additional purchase of Numicon to further support children’s understanding in maths, especially
in relation to number and calculation
Family Support Worker
Sleep Solutions – pupil support
SEN agencies including Educational Psychologist, Support for Learning

Objectives of Pupil Premium Spending
When making decisions about using pupil premium funding it is important to consider the context of the
school and the subsequent challenges faced. Common barriers for FSM children can be less support at
home, weak language and communication skills, lack of confidence, more frequent behaviour difficulties,
and attendance and punctuality issues. There may also be complex family situations that prevent
children from flourishing. This can sometimes be for a short period of time but can also be long running
and stressful for the child. The challenges are varied and there is no “one size fits all”.
Our key objective in using the Pupil Premium Grant is to narrow the gap between pupil groups. As a
school we have developed an excellent track record of ensuring that pupils make good or better
progress, but historically levels of attainment have been lower for FSM (eligible for free school meals) –
this is also a national trend. Through targeted interventions we are working to eliminate barriers to
learning and progress. For children who start school with low attainment on entry, our aim is to ensure
that they make accelerated progress in order to reach age related expectations as they move through
the school.
Furthermore, children who join our school in Reception are proven to make better progress and higher
attainment than those who join throughout KS2 proving that the longer you are in our school, the better
your attainment and progress. Those that join during KS2 still make progress but the time available to
increase this progress can be far less.
We have started each year looking at and considering the needs of our school, the context and the
successes of previous years and initiatives/interventions. In addition to this we have identified some key
principles (outlined below) which we believe will maximise the impact of our pupil premium spending.
Key Principles
Building Belief
We will provide a culture where:
Staff believe in ALL children
There are “no excuses” made for underperformance
Staff adopt a determined and informed approach to overcoming barriers
Staff support children to develop positive mindsets towards learning and enthusiasm towards challenge
Analysing Data
We will ensure that:
All teaching staff and relevant support staff are involved in the analysis of data so that they are fully
aware of strengths and weaknesses
We use research (Such as the Sutton Trust Toolkit) to support us in determining the strategies that will
be most effective but also look at what we believe will best benefit, support and extend our pupils and
their progress
Identification of Pupils
We will ensure that:

17

All teaching staff and appropriate support staff are involved in analysis of data, identification of pupils
and implemented interventions
All pupil premium children benefit from the funding, not just those who are underperforming
Underachievement at all levels is targeted (not just lower attaining pupils)
We identify appropriate support and interventions based upon our professional judgment and knowledge
of the pupils and not just on research or recommendations
Children’s individual needs are considered carefully so that we provide support for those children who
could be doing “even better if…..”
Improving Day to Day Teaching
We will continue to ensure that all children across the school receive good teaching, with increasing
percentages of outstanding teaching achieved by using our Senior Leadership Team to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Set and promote high expectations
Address any within-school variance
Ensure consistent implementation of the non-negotiables, e.g. marking and guided reading
Share good practice within the school and draw on external expertise
Report back to all SLT and teachers on strengths and areas for development relating to the
quality of teaching
Provide and encourage high quality CPD
Improve assessment through joint levelling and moderation exercises as part of KS Teams and
whole school staff sessions

Increasing learning time
We will maximise the time children have to “catch up” through:
•
•
•

Improving attendance and punctuality
Providing earlier intervention in KS1 and EYFS as well as in year admissions to our school
Extended learning out of school hours and lunch times

Individualising support
We ensure that there is no stigma attached to being in an intervention at our school. We believe that
every pupil, at some point in their schooling, needs something, whatever that might be.
We will ensure that the additional support we provide is effective by:
•
•
•
•
•

•

•
•

Looking at the individual needs of each child and identifying their barriers to learning
Ensuring additional support staff and class teachers communicate regularly to support the next
steps for the child/ren
Using teachers and TAs to provide high quality interventions
Matching the skills of the support staff to the interventions they provide
Working with other agencies to bring in additional expertise
o Family Support Worker
o Family Action
o School nursing
o Talk-time/relate
Providing extensive support for parents
o To develop their own skills (ESOL, Literacy, ICT, Family Support Worker, School Nurse)
o To support their children’s learning within the curriculum (meetings with teachers, with
Every Child A Reader and/or Every Child Counts lead, Pupil Premium Leaders etc)
o To manage in times of crisis (behaviour, bereavement, separation, housing)
Tailoring interventions to the needs of the child (e.g. Targeted maths revision sessions)
Recognising and building on child’s strengths to further boost confidence, enthusiasm and
self-esteem

18

Going the Extra Mile
In our determination to ensure that all children succeed we recognise the need for and are committed to
providing individualised interventions as appropriate for set periods of time to support children in times of
crisis.
Funding Priorities
Our aim is to further increase the percentage of outstanding teaching & learning across the school. We
also continue to reduce the use of casual supply staff as we use our own contracted staff to ensure
consistency and continuity for all pupils in our school. We aim to maintain our high standards further in
all subject areas, by enthusing children to become avid learners. We also plan to extend reading
resources, encourage more parent/grandparents in school to listen to readers and focus on improving
home reading.
We continue to promote collaborative learning opportunities which in turn develop the child’s speaking
and listening skills. We want all children to be able to talk confidently about their learning, where they are
and what they need to do to improve. Particularly in upper KS2, the teachers involve the children in
identifying their next steps and ways of achieving their targets (not just academic targets).
We are determined to ensure that the percentage of children working at age related expectations and
above plus the percentage of pupil's making expected progress or better at end of KS1 and 2 increases
further.
Number of pupils and pupil premium grant (PPG) received
630
Total number of pupils on roll
Total number of pupils eligible for PPG
Amount of PPG received per pupil
Total amount of PPG received

122
£1300
£154,700

Item / Project
Objective
YearGroup
5/6
Boosters HA and LA Extending School Hours
Programme of revision for SATs
Level 6 provision –
maths / English

Impact/Outcome
Increased attainment in KS2
English and maths
(Assessment Data)
Increased attainment at
Level 6

Drawing in expertise
Extended provision for higher attaining
children
One to one tuition Individualising support at all level
Increased confidence
Targeted support for children to address (Discussion)
misconceptions, gaps and weaknesses Increased attainment in
English and maths
(Assessment Data)
Small groups in
Individualising support at all levels
Increased attainment in
writing and maths – Small group work to extend children’s
writing and maths
HA and LA
writing and maths skills
(Assessment Data)
All children progress at least
2 / 3 sub levels progress
(Assessment Data)
Easter School
Extending Learning Time
Increased attainment in KS2
Programme of revision for SATs
English and maths
(Assessment Data)
Saturday school
Extending School Hours
Increased attainment in KS2
Programme of revision for SATs
English and maths

19

YearGroup
3/4

Item / Project

Small groups in
Individualising support at all levels
writing and maths – Small group work to extend children’s
HA and LA
writing and maths skills

One to one tuition

1/2

Objective

Individualising support at all levels
Targeted support for children to address
misconceptions, gaps and weaknesses

Boosters – HA and Extending Learning Time
LA
Programme of revision for SATs
Small
Individualising support at all levels
groupsphonics,
Small group work to extend children’s
writing and maths – writing and maths skills
HA and LA

EYFS

Whole
school

Whole
School

Additional TA in
EYFS

Individualising support at all levels
Targeted for identified children with
significant SEN

IPads

Extending resources and using ICT to
raise attainment
3 ipads for EYFS to support literacy and
numeracy
Promoting high quality daily teaching
and sharing expertise:
• Setting high expectations
• Developing teachers’ practice
• Ensuring consistent implementation of
school initiatives
• Facilitating sharing good practice
• Improving quality of assessment
• Planning for and delivering
interventions
• Quality assurance
• Data analysis
• Monitoring and evaluation

Team Leaders

Deputy and
Assistant
Headteachers

To monitor and track the progress of
PP children; liaising with relevant staff
ensuring that all children are receiving
relevant and appropriate opportunities.

20

Impact/Outcome
(Assessment Data)
Increased attainment in
writing and maths
(Assessment Data)
All children progress 2 / 3
sub levels progress
(Assessment Data)
Increased confidence
(Discussion)
Increased attainment in
English and maths
(Assessment Data)
Increased attainment in KS1
English and maths
(Assessment Data)
Increased attainment in
writing and maths
(Assessment Data)
All children progress at least
2 / 3 sub levels progress
(Assessment Data)
SEN children settle well and
quickly, making good
progress (Discussion,
Observations and
Assessment Data)
Increased % of children
working at a good level of
development in reading,
writing and number
Improved quality first
teaching
•
100%good or better
teaching
•
35% outstanding
teaching
Consistent implementation of
practice and expectations
across school (Lesson
observations / Monitoring
file)
Increased % of children
working at or above age
related expectations
(Assessment Data)
•
100% children making
2 sub levels + progress by
the end of KS2
to enable the gap to be
narrowed and closed in the
learning for these identified
pupils.

YearGroup

Item / Project

Objective
· Setting high expectations
· Developing practice.
· Reporting to Governors
· Reporting to Head teacher
· Monitoring progress and data
· Regular meetings with the PP teachers
to discuss progress and next steps
· Key link between staff and additional
interventions
INSET to staff regarding new initiatives
and updates on PP

Outside activities;
Providing children with additional
theatre visits, author experiences beyond the classroom to
visits
enhance their life skills and
learning. Broaden their experiences and
extend their thinking.

Impact/Outcome

Children share new
experiences with other
children and build on this by
using it as a point of
reference to build
on. Enables them to a first
hand experience to apply to
their learning through maths
and literacy projects.
Inspire children’s creativity.

Library development Improving conditions for learning: Library Increased attainment in
and teaching space created to raise the
reading across the school
– teaching space profile of reading across the school.

Reading Books

Numicon

Enable whole classes to use the library,
provide children with greater choice of
reading materials.

Extending resources:
Introducing a multi-sensory maths
teaching resource to help children make
connections with numbers, create good
mental pictures of numbers, so they can
solve problems more effectively.

Targeted parents’ Engaging Parents in learning: Targeted
meetings
parents meetings providing support /
guidance with regard curriculum,
(Family Support children’s levels and next steps
Worker)
Targeted family work to support families
in overcoming barriers to attendance
and barriers to the children’s learning
Nurture Groups

Building Belief:

Evidence of greater
enjoyment and love of
reading
100% children make 2 sub
level progress in maths by
the end of KS2

Discussion with parents
Targeted children make
accelerated progress

Improved attendance
(Attendance analysis)

Barriers to learning are
overcome and targeted
Providing additional support for children children make 2 sub levels+
with a range of needs – emotional,
progress
social, behavioural, attendance /

21

YearGroup

Item / Project

Objective

Impact/Outcome

punctuality etc.
Ipads for SEN

Extending resources and using ICT to
raise attainment:

Increased % of children
make 2/3 sub levels
progress in reading, writing
3 x ipads for SEN to support literacy and
and number
numeracy

Outside activities – · Providing children with additional
theatre visits, author experiences beyond the classroom to
visits.
enhance their life skills and
learning. Broaden their experiences and
extend their thinking.

Children share new
experiences with other
children and build on this by
using it as a point of
reference to build
on. Enables them to a
firsthand experience to apply
to their learning through
maths and literacy projects.

Inspired the children’s
creativity.

Impact of Pupil Premium Spending
The school’s evaluation of its own performance is rigorous. Tracking of progress over time for each pupil
is thorough to ensure we can quickly identify any issues and develop sensible strategies and
interventions to encourage and promote improvement.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

A wide range of data is used – achievement data, pupils’ work, observations, learning walks,
case studies, and staff, parent and pupil voice
Assessment Data is collected half termly so that the impact of interventions can be
monitored regularly
Assessments are closely moderated to ensure they are accurate
Pupil Progress meetings each term are used to ensure the identification of children is reviewed
and good or better progress is being made
Feedback about performance is given to children and parents
Interventions are adapted or changed if they are not working
Case studies are used to evaluate the impact of pastoral interventions, such as on
attendance and behaviour
All members of SLT maintain an overview of pupil premium relating to their own KS Team as well
as having an overview of the whole school position/progress
Governors are updated termly and challenge the school on both progress and spending
Raise Online data identifies a closing of the gap and that children are making good or better
progress over time with improving 3 year trend data.

22

Pupil Premium support/interventions in addition to PP sessions
Reception Interventions
Fine motor skills 1:1 support & small group
work.
Challenge
Phonic interventions
Paston Pack interventions
Social skills groups
Target Readers
Sensory Circuits
Write From The Start

Year 1 Interventions
Target readers (daily and weekly)
Target writers
Phonics
Writing boosters
Number boosters
EAL support
Target maths groups – weekly
Sensory Circuits
Toe-by-toe
Paston Pack
Every Child A Reader (Estella Todisco)
Word Wasp
Sunshine Club

Year 2 interventions
Reading skills booster
Writing skills booster
(inc. handwriting)
Phonic booster group
Target readers
Toe by toe
Numeracy booster
Sensory Circuits
Maths work with ECC (Tessa Brooker)
Every Child A Reader (Estella Todisco)
1st Class @ Number
Word Wasp

Year 3 Interventions
Literacy booster
Numeracy booster
Social skills
Paston pack
Supported spelling
Numbers count
Handwriting
Family support worker
Sunshine club
Sensory Circuits
Hornets Phonics Programme
Target readers
Toe-by-toe
One plus One
Sensory Circuits
Word Wasp

Year 4 interventions
Literacy booster
Numeracy booster
Social skills:
Chatterbox
School of Dreams
Early Starters
Paston pack
Supported spelling
Numbers count
Handwriting
Family support worker
Sunshine club
Sensory Circuits

Year 5 Interventions
Spellings
Boosters – all teachers running one
Focus groups with Mrs Bird
Next steps support – assisting children
Target readers
Supported spellings
Sensory Circuits
1:1 support
Mental Maths targeted group
MAG&T Literacy group

Year 6 interventions
Booster groups with teachers
Target readers
Booster groups with head
Toe by toe

23

Sensory circuits
Small group support in lessons
Focused interventions in lessons
Supported spelling
Some 1:1 supported as required in the lessons
Sensory Circuits
Maths support from ECC lead (Tessa Brooker)
Early Starters
Chatterbox
School of Dreams
Rapid Reading
MAG&T Booster Groups
Easter and Saturday School booster

24

Appendix 4 - Pupil Premium Policy – Hampton Hargate

Hampton Hargate Primary School

Pupil Premium
Policy
Date: March 2014
Review date: March 2016

Hampton Hargate Primary School believes that all children, regardless of ability and behaviour are
valued equally. Groups of pupils (eg. SEN pupils, Children in Care (CiC), EAL pupils etc) are not viewed
as separate but are part of the whole school approach. Different childrens needs are recognised and met
through varied and flexible provision and the use of different styles of teaching & learning throughout the
curriculum. Every Child Matters (ECM) is an important part of the school ethos and we encourage all
staff, governors, visitors, helpers etc to play their part in promoting this. This policy therefore applies to all
our children, regardless of their gender, faith, race, culture, family circumstances or sexuality.
This school is committed to safeguarding and promoting the welfare and safety of all children and
expects all staff to share in this commitment. All staff must follow the guidelines set out in the Child
Protection folder which is in each classroom and key locations around the school.

25

1. Introduction
At Hampton Hargate Primary School, we have high aspirations and ambitions for our children and we
believe that no child should be left behind. We strongly believe that it is not about where you come from
but your passion and thirst for knowledge, and your dedication and commitment to learning that make
the difference between success and failure, and we are determined to ensure that our children are given
every chance to realise their full potential. Pupil premium funding represents a significant proportion of
our budget and this policy outlines how we will ensure it is spent to maximum effect.
2. Background
The pupil premium is a new government initiative that targets extra money at pupils from deprived
backgrounds. Research shows that pupils from deprived backgrounds underachieve compared to their
non-deprived peers. The premium is provided to enable these pupils to be supported to reach their
potential. The Government has used pupils entitled to free school meals (FSM), looked after children
and service children as indicators of deprivation, and have provided a fixed amount of money for schools
per pupil based on the number of pupils registered for FSM over a rolling six year period. This fixed
amount of money is expected to increase every year for the course of this current Parliament. At
Hampton Hargate Primary School we will be using the indicator of those eligible for FSM as well as
identified vulnerable groups as our target children to “close the gap regarding attainment.
3. Context
When making decisions about using pupil premium funding it is important to consider the context of the
school and the subsequent challenges faced. Common barriers for FSM children can be less support at
home, weak language and communication skills, lack of confidence, more frequent behaviour difficulties,
and attendance and punctuality issues. There may also be complex family situations that prevent
children from flourishing. The challenges are varied and there is no “onesize fits all”.
4. Key Principles
By following the key principles below, we believe we can maximise the impact of our pupil premium
spending.
Building Belief
We will provide a culture where:
• staff believe in ALL children
• there are “no excuses” made for underperformance
• staff adopt a “solution-focused” approach to overcoming barriers
• staff support children to develop “growth” mindsets towards learning
Analysing Data
We will ensure that:
• All staff are involved in the analysis of data so that they are fully aware of strengths and
weaknesses across the school
• We use research (Such as the Sutton Trust Toolkit) to support us in determining the
strategies that will be most effective
Identification of Pupils
We will ensure that:
• ALL teaching staff and support staff are involved in the analysis of data and identification of
pupils ALL staff are aware of who pupil premium and vulnerable children are
• ALL pupil premium children benefit from the funding, not just those who are underperforming
• Underachievement at all levels is targeted (not just lower attaining pupils)
• Children’s individual needs are considered carefully so that we provide support for those children
who could be doing “even better if…..”

26

Improving Day to Day Teaching
We will continue to ensure that all children across the school receive good teaching, with increasing
percentages of outstanding teaching achieved by using our team leaders to:
• Set high expectations
• Address any within-school variance
• Ensure consistent implementation of the non-negotiables, e.g. marking and guided reading
• Share good practice within the school and draw on external expertise
• Provide high quality CPD
• Improve assessment through joint levelling and moderation
Increasing learning time
We will maximise the time children have to “catch up” through:
• Improving attendance and punctuality
• Providing earlier intervention (KS1 and EYFS)
• Extended learning out of school hours
• Early mornings and after school
• Saturdays
• Easter holidays
Individualising support
“There’s no stigma attached to being in an intervention in this school. Everyone needs something,
whatever that might be, and so they’re all getting something somewhere.”
We will ensure that the additional support we provide is effective by:
• Looking at the individual needs of each child and identifying their barriers to learning
• Ensuring additional support staff and class teachers communicate regularly
• Using team leaders to provide high quality interventions across their phases
• Matching the skills of the support staff to the interventions they provide
• Working with other agencies to bring in additional expertise
• Beanstalk – volunteer readers o School Home Support
• Providing extensive support for parents to develop their own skills (ESOL,
Literacy, ICT, Back to Work, Managing Money) to support their children’s learning
within the curriculum and to manage in times of crisis
• Tailoring interventions to the needs of the child (e.g. Targeted maths revision sessions in the
afternoons for children who struggle in the main lesson)
• Recognising and building on children’s strengths to further boost confidence (e.g. providing
Turkish GCSE classes)
Going the Extra Mile
In our determination to ensure that ALL children succeed we recognise the need for and are committed
to providing completely individualised interventions for set periods of time to support children in times of
crisis.
5. Monitoring and Evaluation
We will ensure that:
• A wide range of data is used – achievement data, pupils work, observations, learning walks,
case studies, and staff, parent and pupil voice
• Assessment Data is collected half termly so that the impact of interventions can be monitored
regularly
• Assessments are closely moderated to ensure they are accurate

27

•
•
•
•
•
•

Teaching staff and support staff attend and contribute to pupil progress meetings each term and
the identification of children is reviewed
Regular feedback about performance is given to children and parents
Interventions are adapted or changed if they are not working
Case studies are used to evaluate the impact of pastoral interventions, such as on attendance
and behaviour
A designated member of the SLT maintains an overview of pupil premium spending
A governor is given responsibility for pupil premium

6. Reporting
When reporting about pupil premium funding we will include:

o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Information about the context of the school
Objectives for the year
Reasons for decision making
Analysis of data
Use of research
Nature of support and allocation
Learning in the curriculum
Social, emotional and behavioural issues
Enrichment beyond the curriculum
Families and community
An overview of spending
Total PPG (pupil premium grant) received
Total PPG spent
Total PPG remaining
A summary of the impact of PPG
Performance of disadvantaged pupils (compared to non-pupil premium children)
Other evidence of impact e.g. Ofsted, Accreditations
Case studies (pastoral support, individualised interventions)
Implications for pupil premium spending the following year

The Governing Body will consider the information provided and will ensure that there is an annual
statement to the parents on the school website outlining how the Pupil Premium funding has been used
to address the issue of closing the gap for pupils eligible for Pupil Premium. This task will be carried out
in line with the requirements published by the Department for Education.
This policy will be reviewed every two years.
Review date ........................
This policy was adopted by the Full Governing Body on 27th March 2014
Signed ...............................

on behalf of the Governing Body

Date ……………………………………

28

Appendix 5 – Ofsted - How schools are spending the funding successfully to maximise achievement
The report outlines the characteristic as follows Where schools spent the Pupil Premium funding successfully to improve achievement, they shared
many of the following characteristics. They:
• carefully ringfenced the funding so that they always spent it on the target group of pupils
• never confused eligibility for the Pupil Premium with low ability, and focused on supporting their
disadvantaged pupils to achieve the highest levels
• thoroughly analysed which pupils were underachieving, particularly in English and mathematics,
and why
• drew on research evidence (such as the Sutton Trust toolkit4) and evidence from their own and
others’ experience to allocate the funding to the activities that were most likely to have an impact
on improving achievement
• understood the importance of ensuring that all day-to-day teaching meets the needs of each
learner, rather than relying on interventions to compensate for teaching that is less than good
• allocated their best teachers to teach intervention groups to improve mathematics and English, or
employed new teachers who had a good track record in raising attainment in those subjects
• used achievement data frequently to check whether interventions or techniques were working
and made adjustments accordingly, rather than just using the data retrospectively to see if
something had worked
• made sure that support staff, particularly teaching assistants, were highly trained and understood
their role in helping pupils to achieve
• systematically focused on giving pupils clear, useful feedback about their work, and ways that
they could improve it
• ensured that a designated senior leader had a clear overview of how the funding was being
allocated and the difference it was making to the outcomes for pupils
• ensured that class and subject teachers knew which pupils were eligible for the Pupil Premium so
that they could take responsibility for accelerating their progress
• had a clear policy on spending the Pupil Premium, agreed by governors and publicised on the
school website
• provided well-targeted support to improve attendance, behaviour or links with families where
these were barriers to a pupil’s learning
• had a clear and robust performance management system for all staff, and included discussions
about pupils eligible for the Pupil Premium in performance management meetings
• thoroughly involved governors in the decision making and evaluation process
• were able, through careful monitoring and evaluation, to demonstrate the impact of each aspect
of their spending on the outcomes for pupils.2
Where schools were less successful in spending the funding, they tended to have at least some of the
following characteristics. They:
• had a lack of clarity about the intended impact of the spending
• spent the funding indiscriminately on teaching assistants, with little impact
• did not monitor the quality and impact of interventions well enough, even where other monitoring
was effective
• did not have a good performance management system for teaching assistants and other support
staff
• did not have a clear audit trail for where the funding had been spent
• focused on pupils attaining the nationally expected level at the end of the key stage (Level 4, five
A* to C grades at GCSE) but did not go beyond these expectations, so some more able eligible
pupils underachieved
• planned their Pupil Premium spending in isolation to their other planning, for example, it was not
part of the school development plan
• compared their performance to local rather than national data, which suppressed expectations if
they were in a low-performing local authority
• compared the performance of their pupils who were eligible for free school meals with other
eligible pupils nationally, rather than all pupils, again lowering expectations

29

•
•

did not focus their pastoral work on the desired outcomes for pupils and did not have any
evidence to show themselves whether the work had or had not been effective
did not have governors involved in making decisions about the Pupil Premium, or challenging the
way in which it was allocated.

30

CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 6

10 NOVEMBER 2014

Public Report

Report of the Executive Director of Children’s Services
Contact Officer(s) – Jonathan Lewis – Assistant Director – Education, Resources and Corporate
Property
Contact Details – jonathan.lewis@peterborough.gov.uk / 01733 863912

EFFECTIVENESS OF EDUCATION AND TRAINING PROVISION FOR
16- TO 19-YEAR-OLDS IN PETERBOROUGH – OFSTED REVIEW
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide the committee with details of the review of the
effectiveness of education and training provision for 16 to 19 year olds in Peterborough
undertaken by Ofsted in May. It will give an overview of the review and its findings but also the
draft action plan to be put in place to address the area for development the review found.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

The committee is asked to discuss the Ofsted report and review the proposed action plan that
has been developed to address the areas of development identified.

3.

LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY

3.1

Single Delivery Plan - Programme 1 – Creating jobs through growth and improved skills and
education.

4.

BACKGROUND

4.1

Ofsted conducted a review of the effectiveness of education and training provision for 16 -19
year olds, particularly the most vulnerable in Peterborough, during the week beginning the 19th
May 2014. Two of Her Majesty’s Inspectors conducted the five day review. This was a pilot
review, similar in style to that of the old area wide inspections when the Learning and Skills
Councils (LSC) oversaw post 16 provision. The main purpose is to find out what is happening in
education and learning post 16 in a local area and to look at how effective the local ‘system’, as
a whole, is in reducing the number of young people who are not in education, employment or
training (NEET).

4.2

Ofsted also wanted to understand how Peterborough exercised its statutory responsibilities in
respect of:
•
•
•
•

4.3

Tracking all young people 16-19 – intended outcomes and destinations data;
Ensuring there is sufficient and appropriate provision in the local area post 16,
particularly for the most vulnerable;
Reducing the number of young people who are NEET and who may be at risk of being
NEET;
Responding to the Raising of the Participation Age legislation

These responsibilities have changed since the last government with a number of functions
being transferred into schools and other partners. For example, Information, Advice and
Guidance for instance is now a responsibility of schools for delivery and is assessed as part of

31

a schools Ofsted inspection. However the Local Authority is still viewed as the strategic lead
across post 16 education, albeit with many of the powers removed.
4.4

At the time of planning the inspection, the published data indicated that the percentage of
young people identified as NEET in Peterborough was above the regional average. The
decision to review the authority also took account of the findings from the inspection of the local
authority arrangements for supporting school improvement carried out in February 2014. The
inspection in February stated the following –
“The local authority has effective arrangements to ensure there are sufficient and suitable
places for all 16- and 17-year-olds in education or training. A particular strength is the improved
provision, at a local college, for students who have special educational needs or a disability.
There is more to do, however, to increase work-based learning opportunities and to challenge
schools about the quality and impartiality of the information, advice and guidance they provide
to students.”

4.5

This led to the following area for development being outlined in the report –
“Improve information, advice and guidance in schools and broaden the provision of work-based
learning opportunities so that young people succeed along their education and training
pathways.”

4.6

The engagement letter from Ofsted outlined the following lines of enquiry for the inspection –

•

•

•

•

•

Standards and progress: Review of published data against national averages for
GCSE English and mathematics grades A*-C, Key Stage 4 and 5 attainment,
classroom-based learning and work-place learning success rates, learners’ progress
data from the Level 3 Value Added table, learners’ destinations and NEET data.
Local authority strategic planning: The effectiveness of the local authority in meeting
its statutory duties and in providing strategic leadership in relation to the participation of
16-19 year old young people in education or training and their well-being.
Local area provider accountability: The effectiveness and impact of the full range of
organisations working individually and collectively, to ensure transitions and support
young people post-16 into education, employment, and training.
Curriculum range and access: The scope of the 16-19 curriculum for young people,
particularly the most vulnerable, and how effectively is it informed by local skill priority
areas.
Information, advice and guidance: Accessibility, responsiveness and quality of
information, advice, guidance and support.

4.7

As part of the preparation for the review, a self evaluation against these areas was developed
prior to the inspection and shared with inspectors at the opening session when an overview of
post 16 education was presented.

4.8

The inspectors undertook 30 meetings including sessions with the following •
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Senior LA officers and Members including Chief Executive, Lead Member for Education,
Director of Children’s Services, AD Education and Head of 0 – 19 service
Leaving care team managers
8-19 Service team managers
Youth in Localities Team
Alternative Education providers and Youth Offending Service
Performance management
University Technical College and FE Providers
Princes Trust team
NEET delivery and homelessness team
Adolescence Intervention Service
Opportunity Peterborough and LEP

32

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The Skills Board
National Citizenship Programme
Cross Keys Homes
Commissioners to vulnerable groups
Independent Advice and Guidance leads from schools
KS4 PRU visit – Honeyhill
Work Club
Work based learning providers
Raising the Participation age strategic group
Teenage mum support group
Youth council and youth MP
Head teachers

4.9

As this was a review, there was no formal outcome to the review. The report was published on
the 1st September 2014 – see Appendix 1.

5.

KEY ISSUES

5.1

The review outlined a number of strengths especially around support for the most vulnerable in
the city. There was strong praise for teams working together and the local authority having a
good oversight of provision in the city. The areas of weakness were those areas we identified
in our self evaluation at the outset. Areas for improvement were that Key Stage 5 outcomes
were below national average and that information, advice and guidance needed improving.

5.2

The report covers the responsibilities of all stakeholders supporting 16 to 19 learners and the
recommendations cover both the LA and providers. The key recommendations are set out on
page 3 of the report.

5.3

In response to the recommendations made in the report, an action plan has been developed
that covers the following 4 areas 1. Determine clearly the key strategic priorities needed to bring about further improvement
in post-16 provision
2. Review and amend the current consultative and planning arrangements in order that the
local authority and its partners can take swift action to tackle their shared priorities
3. Continue to champion the needs of all young people but report publicly and more
robustly on shortcomings in post 16 provision across the city
4. Devise a means to support and challenge schools in sharpening the quality of their
information, advice and guidance for young people, to meet statutory requirements

5.4

The proposed action plan is outlined in appendix 2. This is a draft document for consultation
with stakeholders and a working group is being established with secondary heads to focus on
the school based issues within the action plan. A similar working group has been set up of LA
officers.

5.5

The plan is still being developed and the timescales for action and resources to deliver actions
are currently being identified. The resources will be found within existing capacity / structure. A
final version will be published once agreed by all key stakeholders.

6.

IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no legal or financial implications to this report.

7.

CONSULTATION

7.1

All key stakeholders will be consulted on the action plan before it is finalised and published. A
copy has been shared with our regional Senior HMI.

33

8.

NEXT STEPS

8.1

The key issues outlined in this paper will be brought back to this committee if required.

9.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information)
Act 1985

9.1

None

10.

APPENDICES

10.1

•
•

Appendix 1 - A review (pilot) of the effectiveness of education and training provision for
16- to 19-year-olds in Peterborough – May 2014
Appendix 2 – Action Plan

34

Aviation House
125 Kingsway
London
WC2B 6SE

T 0300 123 1231
Textphone 0161 618 8524

Direct T 0300 123 123

enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk
www.ofsted.gov.uk

sean.harford@ofsted.gov.uk

1 September 2014

Ms S Westcott
Executive Director of Children’s Services
Peterborough City Council
Children’s Services
Bayard Place
Broadway
Peterborough
PE1 1FF

Dear Ms Westcott
A review (pilot) of the effectiveness of education and training provision for
16- to 19-year-olds in Peterborough – May 2014
Thank you for your hospitality, cooperation and coordination of the arrangements
with your partners to enable this review to take place. I apologise for the length of
time it has taken for us to write to you with our findings.
This letter details the main findings and recommendations of Her Majesty’s
Inspectors following their visit during the week of 19 May 2014. The annex to this
letter sets out a commentary designed to help you and your partners continue to
improve the quality of education and training, and to raise standards in
Peterborough. It also provides an agenda for Ofsted’s ongoing regional challenge
and support to the City Council.
The review focused on:
standards and progress
the effectiveness of the local authority in meeting its statutory duties and in
providing strategic leadership in relation to the participation of 16- to 19-yearolds in education or training and their well-being
the effectiveness and impact of the full range of organisations working
individually and collectively, to ensure that young people are supported in their
transition into post-16 education, employment and training
the scope of 16 to 19 provision for young people, particularly the most
vulnerable
the accessibility, responsiveness and quality of information, advice, guidance
and support.
1

35

Strengths
Vulnerable young people not in education, employment or training (NEET) are
well supported by the local authority and its partners; many gain the skills and
confidence needed to keep them in learning.
The local authority has good oversight of provision and works well with
partners. It is making good progress in managing the ‘raising of the compulsory
participation age’ (RPA) initiative and in increasing the proportion of 16- and
17-year-olds engaged in education and training.
There are bold post-16 initiatives on the near horizon, each with the potential
to broaden provision for young people.
Operationally there are excellent examples of practitioners working highly
effectively across colleges, schools, youth intervention teams, housing and the
youth offending service to ensure a holistic response to the issues young people
face.
Weaknesses
Too high a proportion of young people within school sixth forms perform poorly
at Key Stage 5.
Young people in schools are not always sufficiently well-informed to enable
them to access vocational programmes best suited to their needs.
There is a lack of a city-wide strategic approach to planning for all young
people.
The approach to the monitoring of and support for schools, colleges and other
providers to ensure that they meet their statutory responsibilities in providing
well-informed and impartial careers information, advice and guidance is illdefined.
There is a lack of understanding by all parties of the impact on young people’s
future opportunities of the new initiatives planned in the city, such as the
Innovation and Skills Centre and the university technology college.

2

36

Recom
mmendations
Peterb
borough City
C
Council should
d:
w
work with scchools to continue
c
to
o raise achievement
de
etermine clearly
c
the key strateg
gic prioritie
es needed to bring abbout furthe
er
im
mprovemen
nt in post-1
16 provisio
on
re
eview and amend the
e current cconsultative
e and planning arranggements so
s that
th
he local autthority and
d its partneers can tak
ke swift acttion to tackkle their sh
hared
prriorities
co
ontinue to champion the needss of all young people but reportt publicly and
a
m
more robusttly on shorrtcomings iin post-16 provision across
a
the city
de
evise a me
eans to sup
pport and cchallenge schools
s
in sharpeningg the quality of
th
heir information advicce and guid
dance for young
y
peo
ople, to meeet statutorry
re
equirementts.
All pro
oviders sh
hould:
in
ndividually review the
e extent to which the
ey are meeting their ppost-16
ob
bligations, particularly in respecct of data sharing
bu
uild on exissting joint working w
with a view to contributing to thhe collectiv
ve
im
mprovemen
nt of outco
omes for al l young pe
eople post--16.
I hope you and your
y
officerrs found th
he review helpful
h
and that this lletter and annex
a
supportts you in making
m
furtther improvvements in
n provision
n and outcoomes for th
he
young people of the
t city.
Yours ssincerely

Sean H
Harford HMI
H
Region
nal Directtor, East of
o Englan
nd

3

37

Annex
Context
Post-16 education and training in Peterborough is provided through all 12 of the
city’s secondary schools, Peterborough Regional College, which provides general
further education, and City College, designated as a community learning and skills
provide. There is also a network of often small independent learning providers. There
are some 2,280 young people in the current Year 12 cohort. The vast majority of
provision offered by schools is at A and AS level, with only a few offering vocational
courses at levels 2 and 3.

Commentary
Standards and progress
Measures to improve the educational outcomes for children pre-16 within the city are
beginning to have a positive impact. Over the last three years, the proportion
achieving five or more GCSEs grade A* to C, including English and mathematics, has
increased noticeably, although rates remain below national averages. School
attendance rates are also improving. Aided by the local authority’s increased focus
on school improvement and the pilot school-to-school support model, outcomes for
young people when they leave Year 11 have been raised.
Participation rates in learning in Year 12 are high at 92.3%. April figures for 2014
show that the Year 12 cohort was 2,280 of which 819 (36%) were in further
education and 83 (3.6%) were in employment or some form of work-based learning.
The majority of young people (52%) stay on in learning within their own school’s
sixth form. Retention rates within school sixth forms are above the national rate in
eight out of the 12 secondary schools.
At 6.7%, the figure for 16- to 18-year-olds not in employment, education or training
(NEET) in 2013 is above the national average. This equates to some 450 young
people but represents a reduction from previous years. The NEET rate increases with
age incrementally to 9.7% at age 18. The proportion of young people whose activity
is unknown is currently around 3%. In each of the last three years, this proportion
has dropped markedly and is now well below the national average of 9.2%.
Standards in post-16 provision are too variable and are poor overall. While
achievement rates in about half of the sixth forms are above national averages, this
contrasts greatly with the others where rates are much lower. In aggregate, this has
pulled down Key Stage 5 success rates in the city over the last three years
consistently to around 10 percentage points below national averages.
Performance for individual subjects at A level is also variable across school sixth
forms. The proportion of students gaining A levels at grades A* to B is below the
national level – the average grade achieved sits between C and D. Achievement of
learners studying classroom-based vocational courses is at the national average.
4

38

Achievement rates for learners studying in the workplace, at 85%, are below the
national average of 89%.
The local authority and its partners work well to reduce the proportion of young
people who are NEET. In reducing these figures over recent years, the city has
responded proactively to the needs of a rapidly expanding cohort, including young
people arriving from Eastern Europe.
Working together, the two colleges, the pupil referral unit and the local authority’s
youth intervention teams are effective in helping the various different groups of
vulnerable young people access education and make progress towards employment.
The standard of such work is often high. For example, the Prince’s Trust programme
delivered by the local authority in close partnership with Peterborough Regional
College, as the funding partner, is intensive and effective. Success rates are routinely
above 85%.
The local authority monitors the proportions of young people following the different
options for post-16 education well. It does not, however, analyse sufficiently the
performance of those moving into further education in colleges or with private
training providers. The local authority provides RAG-rated risk assessments to
receiving providers, but more support needs to be provided to these organisations on
their use in identifying vulnerable learners. It is hindered by limited access to
national qualification success rate data, which restricts officers’ abilities to monitor
the performance of aspects of post-16 provision.
Local authority strategic planning and local area provider accountability
This review was informed by the statutory duties placed on local authorities to:
promote the effective participation of all 16- and 17-year-old residents in their
area
make arrangements to identify young people who are not participating
secure sufficient suitable education and training provision for all 16- to 19-yearolds
track young people’s participation.
The review was also informed by the specific requirement on the local authority to
ascertain views on existing provision of positive activities and facilities from young
people in its area.
The local authority is making good progress in managing RPA. The indications from
this review are that its oversight of post-16 developments places it in a good position
to move forward strategically and effect further improvements. However, it is evident
that more rapid improvement can only be achieved with the full cooperation of key
agencies and providers. Currently, this is not the case.

5

39

The Skills Service, managed by Opportunity Peterborough, the economic
development arm of the council, is working to identify and meet the city’s skills
needs. The NEET/RPA strategy group is in place to promote post-16 education and
training. However, overall planning, consultation, delivery and improvement are
weakened by the absence of an agreed single strategic mechanism. The local
authority acknowledged this. Schools are regularly invited to contribute to post- 16
strategic planning groups but are still not fully represented at a senior enough level.
The local authority has too little engagement with the private training sector. As with
many other local authorities, Peterborough does not receive information about workbased learning providers and where they operate. This lack of information is holding
back further development.
While the local authority has succeeded in harnessing the goodwill of partner
organisations, the perception of many is that not all are working towards common
goals and too much activity is independent and insular. This comes at a crucial point
where new national policies, such as the study programme, require embedding. It is
also the case that local proposals, including Peterborough Regional College’s
sponsored university technology college and the Innovation and Skills Centre, either
have commenced, or look likely to do so. The respective roles and the working
relationship with the Greater Cambridge/Greater Peterborough Enterprise Partnership
are not clear. This is particularly so in respect of actions to support the training and
employment prospects of vulnerable young people, and to better understand and
address the particular challenges faced in Peterborough.
The adolescent intervention, youth in localities and NEET teams represent a
significant resource and work well in supporting the most vulnerable young people.
The success of this work is enhanced by strong day-to-day operational links with, for
example, Cross Key Housing, the Youth Offending Service, the pupil referral unit and
the two colleges.
Post-16 developments in education and training rightly form part of the local
authority’s wider strategic ambitions for economic growth and creating routes to
employment. The work of the newly created communities directorate, responsible for
commissioning all education and training provision, is becoming embedded and
commissioning intentions are being modified to more accurately respond to the
needs of specific groups of young people. For example, it has been adept at
attracting external funding and, increasingly, forging partnerships to support
economic and employment-related initiatives.
The new Peterborough school-to-school support and challenge network, which has
been facilitated by the local authority, has not yet extended its philosophy and reach
sufficiently to post-16 issues, but this is planned from September 2014. On
occasions, the responsiveness of city-wide services to the needs of young people is
impaired because some schools are too slow to submit timely data about 16- and 17year-olds who drop out from courses.

6

40

Strategic planning now needs to be sharper and focused more keenly on the most
vital issues and actions that pertain to the entire city’s young people. The evidence
from this review suggests the need for the local authority to strengthen its key
leadership role in areas such as:
publishing comparative data and challenging all providers about the quality of
what is being delivered
brokering effective relationships
improving the effectiveness of information exchange with funding agencies, in
particular the Skills Funding Agency (SFA)
creating a pool of high quality information, advice and guidance providers from
which schools could commission services
in conjunction with partners, considering the merits of a common application
process
leading on strategies to attract alternative funding to support 16 to 19 provision
through, for example, social finance routes.
Such ambitions are only likely to be achieved by the local authority drawing directly
and strategically on the skills and expertise that other agencies and providers in the
city possess and that it does not.
Provision and curriculum
While there are sufficient school sixth form and level 3 provision places in the city,
results need to improve. Key Stage 5 performance is poor and some young people
are not accessing the available vocational programmes that are better suited to their
needs.
The local authority and its partners are working well towards a holistic approach to
curriculum planning in relation to the most vulnerable young people. This approach
enables agencies to manage effectively the challenges that young people may
encounter, including learning difficulties and/or disabilities, securing housing, mental
health, offending and improving their English language skills. In the work viewed by
inspectors, great efforts are made to meet the needs of individuals and to good
effect.
Good wrap-around care is provided for care leavers, with local services performing
well in relation to national standards for education, training and employment,
including to higher education. Few care leavers, however, remain in school sixth
forms, preferring to progress to college. A recent inspection of the Youth Offending
Service reported a positive focus on education, training and employment, resulting in
high numbers of children and young people being placed in suitable provision. It also
noted excellent links with colleges within the area that help provide opportunities for
young people to progress into education and training after completing their court
orders. New young arrivals from, for example, Eastern Europe are well supported by
services.
7

41

Flexible provision for young parents is provided at Peterborough Regional College,
where they receive good individual support and achieve well on vocational courses.
Similarly, City College has well-structured educational programmes for young people
with learning difficulties and/or disabilities.
Some good programmes ensure that young people at risk of leaving education or
training remain engaged in constructive activities over the summer period. These
include the Prince’s Trust, the National Citizens Service (NCS) provided by the local
authority, and Peterborough Regional College’s summer arts award programme.
These approaches work well but arrangements to ensure that all vulnerable young
people known to the local authority benefit from such support during the summer
period are not secure.
More potential exists for the local authority, its commissioned partners and
outsourced services to host apprenticeships and pre-apprenticeship opportunities for
young people. Cross Keys Homes does so to good effect and has been able to
provide secure jobs for some young people as a result.
Where targeted programmes for the more vulnerable are successful, such as in the
two colleges and the pupil referral unit or through the youth intervention teams, they
include many of the following elements:
partnership working where complementary roles and accountabilities are
understood and acted on
flexible recruitment that allows students to join at various points in the year
a very strong focus on self-esteem, resilience and achievement
robust processes to ensure retention and enable progression
outreach youth work to engage the most vulnerable
good initial assessment of young people’s needs and appropriate levels of support
that is reviewed regularly
development of English, mathematics and employability skills
opportunities for realistic work experience
support to reintegrate young people into mainstream provision where appropriate
skilled practitioners who challenge young people’s behaviour and show
determination in ensuring that young people stay on programme.
The local authority recognises the desirability of consulting with young people about
city-wide services and its requirement by government to consult them on existing
provision of ‘positive activities’. Engagement is undertaken predominantly through
the Youth Council and neighbourhood panels and policing forums, but more can be
achieved to broaden the participation of all young people in the council’s decisionmaking processes.
Both Peterborough Regional College and City College are providing the government’s
new traineeship programmes. The relatively new University Centre Peterborough
(UCP) has broadened higher education opportunities for the area. A few young
8

42

people spoken to by inspectors had firm plans to enrol at UCP, which meets their
particular domestic needs.
Significant developments are at the planning stage. The Innovation and Skills Centre,
due to open in 2015, aims to promote learning in science, technology, engineering
and mathematics. Similarly, the proposed Peterborough Regional College’s sponsored
university technology college, specialising in engineering, environmental
sustainability and construction, will have a significant impact of the breadth and
depth of the local area curriculum. More needs to be done to ensure that post-16
providers, individually and collectively, review the impact of these forward-looking
developments on the city-wide curriculum and on existing programmes.
The local authority, schools and colleges all identify a lack of parental understanding
about the various options which exist post-16. This lack of knowledge and
information weakens parents’ and carers’ abilities and confidence to challenge the
advice they may be being given.
Information, advice and guidance
Raising the participation age and the diverse range of routes open to young people
point to the need for sophisticated and well-informed information, advice and
guidance to be provided at key points. Current arrangements, however, do not
ensure that all young people have access to guidance about the full range of options
open to them.
Different providers of post-16 education are not working together sufficiently well to
ensure that objective, well-informed and impartial information, advice and guidance
are in place. Indeed, the perception of many partners is that some groups are
resisting an overall strategic approach to provide this overview.
Schools express starkly differing levels of understanding about the purpose,
principles and delivery of information, advice and guidance. In some cases, it is
refined and well-embedded within the broader school curriculum, but in other cases
provision is insufficient. Many have good working links with local companies and
employers, but knowledge about, for example, work-based learning options is weak.
Quality assurances procedures and reporting mechanisms to school governors on
careers information, advice and guidance require improvement.
Senior school managers make the point that, despite recently inheriting information,
advice and guidance duties, few have sufficient capacity to ensure that they can
engage with the complexity of schemes and routes available to young people. They
concur with the need to further develop schools’ expertise in careers information,
advice and guidance and better utilise the networks that exist to improve planning
and share good practice. In a valid attempt to ensure that young people can access
professional careers guidance, some schools buy in careers education expertise.
However, there is an urgent need for schools to be supported in determining their
levels of need and on how best to procure effective services.
9

43

The local authority is working well to improve some aspects of information, advice
and guidance through, for example, an annual careers event linked to a summer
music festival for young people.
As part of a national poll in 2013, the UK Youth Parliament reported to government
that, out of 15 issues, young people had selected the lack of access to work
experience as their primary concern. The national findings were mirrored through
Peterborough Youth Council’s consultation. Clearly, young people are very alert to
the need for the qualifications, skills and experiences required to prepare them for
their future lives.

10

44

45

Priority One: Develop a robust approach to the analysis and dissemination of post 16 data to include performance and distance travelled
Accountable Leads: Jon Lewis (reporting to the School Improvement Board)
Num Strategic Actions
Operational Actions
Performance Measure
By whom and
Resources/costs
when
I.
Nominate key personnel within the
1:1:1 Improve data
I.
Key personnel identified in data
Kim
data team and within school
analysis at KS 5 in
and school improvement teams. Sawyer/Gary
order to inform the
improvement to conduct analysis
Roles and responsibilities
Perkins (GP)
II.
Report information annually to
council of the
defined
Children’s Services/Communities
strengths and
II.
Data forms part of the data
weaknesses of
DMT with action plan to address
available to Children’s
areas of weakness
performance in
Service/Communities
th
school 6 forms in
III.
Provide data analysis to NEET
III.
NEET Strategic Partnership
Peterborough.
Strategic Partnership in order to
have data and use it to inform
inform planning
decisions re provision across
IV.
Use data in ongoing school
the city
improvement discussions with
IV.
Post 16 performance data forms
secondary headteachers in order to
part of the school improvement
challenge performance
conversation with secondary
V.
Develop the reporting of KS5
headteachers.
outcomes to the Creating
V.
Detailed report on the landscape
Opportunities and Tackling
and outcomes of KS5 to be
Inequalities Scrutiny Committee
discussed at Scrutiny.
1:1:2 Ensure access to
I.
Identify contact within the EFA/SFA
I.
Contact made and information
Claire Wookey
WBL providers’
re access to relevant WBL data to
exchanged on a regular basis
(CW)
include:
performance data
and analyse data in
-Names of providers
relation to
-Performance of providers
performance
-Number of Peterborough -young
outcomes and
people being supported
progression

Ofsted Recommendation 1: Determine clearly the key strategic priorities needed to bring about further improvement in post-16 provision

Effectiveness of education and training provision for16- to 19-year-olds in Peterborough
Draft Action Plan

1

RAG

46

2

Improved performance at KS5
A*/A, A*/C, A* - E at A level Target: in line with statistical neighbours. Average point score per entry, Target in line with statistical neighbours (specific data to be added
pending evaluation of current performance)

Reduction in NEET figurers: current figure = 6.14%. Target = 5.5%
Increased apprenticeship numbers specifically those apprenticeships in the 16 -19 age bracket and apprenticeships at level 2: current recorded numbers on data base = 252.
Target = 300
Increase the number of young people on level 3 apprenticeship courses (bench mark to be determined pending accurate up to date data)
More identified vulnerable young supported to engage on a learning focused pathway. Vulnerable young people identified as being those in the following cohorts:
Leaving care: current performance NEET = 37.5%. Target = 20%
YOS: current performance NEET = 47%. Target = 25%
Young mothers: current performance NEET = 62%. Target = 45%
Young people with LLDD: current performance NEET = 9%. Target = 5.5%

Whole cohort: current figure =81.4%. Target = 90%

Increased numbers staying on in education and learning: Year 12 current figure = 91.36%. Target: rolling average for Nov, Dec, Jan =98% (2014/2015)

How will we know?

What difference will this make?
With the Raising of the participation Age all providers have an understanding of the performance of young people across the city. They can therefore plan their provision in
light of the gaps in the curriculum offer across the city and performance levels of providers.

47

1:2:3

1:2:2

1:2:1

Establish a schools’
working group to
look at KS5
curriculum,
performance and
outcomes and make
recommendations
for future post 16
delivery across the
city
Identify a lead
secondary school
improvement
consultant with the
responsibility to
support and
challenge schools in
developing an
appropriate KS5
curriculum offer.
Support the
introduction of a
Common Application
Process across
Peterborough
schools and learning
providers

Develop a business case to support
the introduction of a common
application process across the city

Disseminate business plan at an
individual level with headteachers,
college principles

II.

Define/refine job description to
include post 16 responsibilities

I.

I.

Meet with individual headteachers to
encourage sign up and commitment
to such a group
II.
Set up small working group of
headteachers in order to establish:
-Terms of reference
-Frequency of meetings
-Chair
-Dissemination of discussion

I.

I.

I.

II.

I.

Process for implementing CAP
in place with a timeline for
delivery

JD in place and recruited to

Meeting established with
appropriate chair
Collaborative plans in place and
shared with schools and
learning providers

Priority Two: Work with schools to improve outcomes at KS5
Accountable Leads: Jon Lewis (reporting to the School Improvement Board)
Num Strategic Actions
Operational Actions
Performance Measure

Allison Sunley
(AS)

GP

By Whom and
When
Jon Lewis (JL)

Resources/costs

Ofsted Recommendation 1: Determine clearly the key strategic priorities needed to bring about further improvement in post-16 provision

3

RAG

48

Secure cross organisation
agreement

4

Improved performance at KS5
A*/A, A*/C, A* - E at A level Target: in line with statistical neighbours. Average point score per entry, Target in line with statistical neighbours (specific data to be added
pending evaluation of current performance)

Reduction in NEET figurers: current figure = 6.14%. Target = 5.5%
Increased apprenticeship numbers: current recorded numbers on data base = 252. Target = 300
More identified vulnerable young supported to engage on a learning focused pathway. Vulnerable young people identified as being those in the following cohorts:
Leaving care: current performance NEET = 37.5%. Target = 20%
YOS: current performance NEET = 47%. Target = 25%
Young mothers: current performance NEET = 62%. Target = 45%
Young people with LLDD: current performance NEET = 9%. Target = 5.5%

Whole cohort: current figure =81.4%. Target = 90%

Increased numbers staying on in education and learning: Year 12 current figure = 91.36%. Target: rolling average for Nov, Dec, Jan =98%

How will we know?

Headteachers/Principals will take responsibility for the outcomes of all young people in Peterborough not just those within their own institution. This in turn will lead to a more
co-ordinated offer of curriculum provision across the city with organisations playing to their strengths. The introduction of a common application process will support the drive
to greater impartial information, advice and guidance given to young people. This in turn will ensure that young people are able to make informed choices about their
progression through learning.

What difference will this make?

III.

49

1:3:4

1:3:3

1:3:2

Reduce the number of

Develop a young
th
person friendly 6 form
guide for LAC about
the values and
advantages of studying
th
in 6 form
Establish and ‘in
house’
apprenticeship/pre
apprenticeship
programme for
LAC/YOS

I.

IV.

III.

II.

I.

III.

II.

I.

Audit current opportunities for

Audit existing apprenticeship
provision in the council
Develop a realistic and
achievable programme of
potential apprenticeship/pre
apprenticeships positions in the
council
Develop a strategy to support
teams to recruit to this identified
positions
Liaise with the In Care Council to
validate and promote the
programme and opportunities

Use in the In Care Council to
develop content
Seek sponsorship for the
production of the guide
Launch and disseminate guide

IV.

VI.

V.

I.

Reduction in YOS NEET figures

Number of apprenticeships/pre
apprenticeships offered in the
council
Number of places taken up by
LAC/vulnerable young people

Guide launched and externally
funded

Iain Easton

Jenny Goode
(JG)

Jenny
Humphreys (JH)

Priority Three: Improve access to high quality post 16 provision for the most vulnerable including young people who are LAC
Accountable Leads: Jon Lewis
Num Strategic Actions
Operational Actions
Performance Measure
By Whom and
When
Provide opportunities
I.
Engage school leaders to develop
I.
Programme in place for a
for young people who
a programme of events/activities
designated year group(s)
Dee Glover
specifically targeted at under 16
(DG)
are LAC to visit school
1:3:1
th
6 forms in the city
LAC/vulnerable young people re
th
the opportunities of 6 form study

Resources/costs

Ofsted Recommendation 1: Determine clearly the key strategic priorities needed to bring about further improvement in post-16 provision

5

RAG

50

III.

II.

YOS
Identify potential partner
organisations to support
sustainable employment
Support those post 16 young
people who are YOS to improve
their functional skills

How will we know?
th
Increased number of LAC remaining on in school 6 forms
Increased number of identified vulnerable young people taking up pre apprenticeship and full apprenticeship opportunities
Increased number of in house apprenticeship/pre apprenticeship opportunities offered to LAC/vulnerable young people

6

What difference will this make?
Those most vulnerable young people have access to an appropriate place in learning and are supported to remain there. The learning placement provides protection against
further increased vulnerability
Vulnerable young people are supported to achieve their potential and to raise their aspirations

young people under
YOS who are NEET
through the
identification of
appropriate
employment pathways

51

III.

II.

I.

Identify major contracts and
review
Liaise with existing providers to
understand their support for
apprenticeships
Devise, if appropriate, new
contract arrangements which
include the council’s expectation
re apprenticeship places
Identify appropriate events across
the council to promote
apprenticeships

II.

I.

Contracts identified and number
of associated apprenticeship
places identified
New contract arrangements in
place across Commissioning
and the council as a whole

Raise awareness of
I.
II.
Events identified and agendas
the value and
planned to include the
1:4:2 importance of
promotion of apprenticeships
apprenticeships at key
stake holder events.
Disseminate the model
I.
Work with Cross Keys Homes to
II.
Case study complied and
of apprenticeship
compile case study of
disseminated
1:4:3
support developed by
apprenticeship and preCross Keys Homes
apprenticeship activity
What difference will this make?
Broaden the curriculum/opportunities available to young people
Provides greater access for young people to the approved work based learning route
How will we know?
Increased number of apprenticeship delivered by the council and partners
Each contract has an identified, but reasonable expectation, of an apprenticeship requirement

1:4:1

Conduct a review of all
major contract with the
council to ensure that
they contain an
expectation of an
apprenticeship offer

Priority Four: Work with the council’s partners to increase the apprenticeship offer to young people
Accountable Leads: Wendi Ogle-Welbourn (WOW)
Num Strategic Actions
Operational Actions
Performance Measure

AS

WOW

Lou Williams
(LW)/Oliver
Hayward (OH)

By Whom and
When

Resources/costs

Ofsted Recommendation 1: Determine clearly the key strategic priorities needed to bring about further improvement in post-16 provision

7

RAG

52

8

Priority Five: Ensure all vulnerable young people are appropriately supported during the school summer holiday period in order to make a smooth transition into
learning Post 16
Accountable Leads: Adrian Chapman
Num Strategic Actions
Operational Actions
Performance Measure
By Whom and
Resources/costs
RAG
When
Audit existing support
I.
Identify member of staff conduct
I.
Audit completed
activities during the
audit
II.
Recommendations acted upon
Matt Oliver (MO)
1:5:1 summer period for
II.
Make recommendations
vulnerable 16 year
olds.
Working with partners
I.
Identify gaps in existing provision
I.
Strategy completed
develop a ‘local offer’
II.
Establish task and finish group to
II.
Dissemination taken place
MO
for identified
develop strategy
III.
Strategy signed off at senior
management/partnership level
vulnerable young
III.
Disseminate strategy to key
1:5:2 people who are post
stakeholders
16 during the summer
IV.
Review and make amendments
holiday period
where needed
V.
Publish and communicate local
offer to parents and carers
What difference will this make?
Vulnerable young people have access to positive activities and support during the long summer holiday period
The strategic planning ensures that all identified vulnerable young people and groups are supported adequately during this transition period
How will we know?
Fewer drop outs during year 13
Decline in NEET numbers
Increase in In Learning numbers

Ofsted Recommendation 1: Determine clearly the key strategic priorities needed to bring about further improvement in post-16 provision

53

By Whom and
When

Use future stakeholder
I.
Identify potential suitable
I.
Stakeholder events identified
events to publicise the
stakeholder events
and items on the agenda
JL/AS
visions behind the
II.
Ensure the vision behind the UTC
1:6:1 Sustainable Skills
and sustainable Skills Centre is
Centre and the
presented at the above
University Technical
College
Communicate
I.
See 1:2:1
I.
All learning providers are aware
information re the
of the visions behind the UTC
AS
Sustainable Skills
and the Sustainable Skills
1:6:2 Centre to
Centre
headteachers and
work based learning
providers
What difference will this make?
Schools and other partners will have access to the resources on offer through the UTC and the Sustainable Skills Centre
More exciting/appropriate curriculum offer available to young people 14 -19
STEM subjects are presented in an exciting and positive light
How will we know?
Numbers of schools involved with the UTC and Sustainable Skills Centre
Increased uptake of STEM subjects
Better performance in A Levels with STEM subjects

Priority Six: Actively promote the vision for the Sustainable Skills Centre and University Technical College
Accountable Leads: Jon Lewis
Num Strategic Actions
Operational Actions
Performance Measure

Resources/costs

Ofsted Recommendation 1: Determine clearly the key strategic priorities needed to bring about further improvement in post-16 provision

9

RAG

54

10

Priority One: Secure positive engagement with key partners in order to ensure that Peterborough’s priorities are effectively communicated to decision makers
Accountable Leads: WOW
Num Strategic Actions
Operational Actions
Performance Measure
By Whom and
Resources/costs
RAG
When
Establish regular
I.
Meet individually with members in
I.
Group established and meets on WOW
meetings with
order to confirm the need for such
a regular basis
Peterborough LEP
a group
2:1:1 leads in order to
II.
Agree chair and TOR
confirm Peterborough’s
learning and skills
priorities
Review the TOR,
II.
Review and make
III.
New partnership established or
Head of Adult
membership and
recommendations for
existing partnership more
Skills/Head of
2:1:2
function of the NEET
amendments/changes for the
focused on the broader key
SEND and
Strategic Partnership
future
priorities for Peterborough
Inclusion
Engage secondary
I.
Individual meetings with
I.
Meetings have taken place with
JL
headteachers in the
headteachers in order to gain
all secondary headteachers in
2:1:3
NEET decision making
support for the city’s priorities
Peterborough
forums
What difference will this make?
Peterborough identified as a source for European funding and as a LEP priority
Funding allocated by the LEP is targeted at identified needs in the city
How will we know?
Increase funding comes to Peterborough to support activities which support skill development and tackles poverty and exclusion

Ofsted Recommendation 2: Review and amend the current consultative and planning arrangements in order that the local authority and its partners can take
swift action to tackle their shared priorities

55

11

Priority 1: Ensure that the council has a commissioning plan that encompasses the council’s vision and aspirations for all young people post 16 in Peterborough
Accountable Leads: JL
Num Strategic Actions
Operational Actions
Performance Measure
By Whom and
Resources/costs
RAG
When
Develop a post 16
I.
Scope content of plan
I.
Plan developed having gone
AS
Education/Skills plan
II.
Write plan
through appropriate scrutiny
that articulates the
III.
Establish task and finish group to
3:1:1 council’s aspirations
contribute/evaluate plan
and expectations for
IV.
Present to CMT and relevant
young people aged 16
DMTs
- 25
Disseminate the
I.
Identify possible opportunities for
I.
Dissemination achieved
AS
vision/strategy to all
dissemination
II.
Feedback and further
3:1:2
stakeholders through a
II.
See also 1:2:1 and 2:1:4
recommendations acted upon
structure event
I.
See 1:2:1 and 2:1:4
I.
Structures are in place
AS/WOW
Develop appropriate
consultative structures
II.
Regular feedback informs
which support the
progress
regular dissemination
3:1:3 of the strategy and
progress towards
achieving the
outcomes from the
strategy
What difference will this make?
The aspirations for all young people in the city are clearly identified and communicated.
Council takes a lead with schools and stakeholder in terms of expectations and aspirations
How will we know?
Individual partner strategies are co-ordinated to align with the council’s vision and expectations
Partners demonstrate a commitment to improving the outcomes for all young people in the city rather than just their own individual cohorts
Partners more willing to collaborate and plan collectively for the city

Ofsted Recommendation 3: Continue to champion the needs of all young people but report publicly and more robustly on shortcomings in post 16 provision
across the city

56

12

Priority Two: Develop a process for sharing key stage 5 outcomes with all providers (including work based learning providers) across the city
Accountable Leads:
Num Strategic Actions
Operational Actions
Performance Measure
By Whom and
Resources/costs
RAG
When
See 1:2:1
I.
Liaise with the EFA and SFA to
I.
See 1:2:1
2:1:4
obtain information relating to
II.
2:1:4
GP
3:1:2
WBL providers operating in the
III.
3:1:2
3:1:3
city
IV.
3:1:3
3:2:1
II.
See 1:2:1
III.
2:1:4
IV.
3:1:2
V.
3:1:3
What difference will this make?
Schools and work based learning providers are well informed of post 16 strengths and weaknesses. They use this information to support young people in their choices post
16 as well as to improve performance in areas that are weak.
How will we know?
A Level performance improves
More young people make informed choices about where they will study post 16

Ofsted Recommendation 3: continue to champion the needs of all young people but report publicly and more robustly on shortcomings in post 16 provision
across the city

57

Ensure parents
understand the offer
for post 16 year olds in
Peterborough
What difference will this make?

Engage regularly with
the Skills Service in
order to gain support in
addressing gaps in
schools’ provision

4:1:3

4:1:4

Develop a framework
of ‘approved’ high
quality information,
advice and guidance
providers which can be
used by schools

4:1:2

I.

IV.
I.

III.

II.

I.

Find a way of incorporating this
information within the new
council’s ICT strategy

Seek funding from schools to
support the development of an
approved framework of providers
Seek expressions of interest from
advice and guidance providers
Identify an approved list based on
agreed criteria
Publicise to schools approved list
Identify member of staff to be the
link person with the Skills service

I.

III.

I.
II.

I.
II.

Link person in place
Skills Service activities are
disseminated across the council
and to key partners
Skills Service responsive to
information advice and guidance
needs across the city
Information available through
council’s website or via an App.

Funding identified from schools
Framework in place

AS

AS

AS

Priority One: Develop a monitoring tool re information, advice and guidance which supports schools to improve practice
Accountable Leads:
Num Strategic Actions
Operational Actions
Performance Measure
By Whom and
When
4:1:1 Use the process of
I.
Present issues and Ofsted
I.
Strategy for Charter mark in
developing an IAG
observations to all secondary
place and approved
AS
charter mark to
headteachers
II.
First schools identified for
support schools in
II.
Establish a working group to
Charter Mark Process
developing more
devise Charter Mark Process
effective practice
III.
Develop an implementation time
regarding IAG.
line for proposed Charter Mark

Resources/costs

13

Ofsted Recommendation 4: Devise a means to support and challenge schools in sharpening the quality of their information, advice and guidance for young
people, to meet statutory requirements

RAG

58
14

Schools deliver high quality, impartial information, advice and guidance
More young people have access to relevant and accurate information at an early stage in their secondary school career
More young people access courses that are suitable and appropriate to their needs, aspirations and potential
How will we know?
Increased take up of apprenticeship programmes at all levels
Increase take up of traineeships
th
Greater movement across the city’s 6 forms of young people
Improved performance at KS5
A*/A, A*/C, A* - E at A level Target: in line with statistical neighbours. Average point score per entry, Target in line with statistical neighbours (specific data to be added
pending evaluation of current performance)

CREATING OPPORTUNITIES & TACKLING
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 7

10 NOVEMBER 2014

Public Report

Report of the Executive Director of Children’s Services
Contact Officer(s) – Sue Westcott
Contact Details - 863606

RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION OF SOCIAL WORKERS
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

The purpose of this report is to inform Scrutiny Committee of the current position of the
recruitment and retention of staff in Children’s Social Care.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

To note the sustained improvement in Social Care and the developments to recruit and retain
Social Care staff.

3.

LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY

3.1

The Sustainable Community Strategy identifies “Improving Health” and “Supporting Vulnerable
People” as priorities. Improvement in Children’s Social Care is key to the delivery of these
priorities.

4.

BACKGROUND

4.1

Following an Ofsted Inspection in August 2011, the Council has engaged in a programme to
secure rapid improvement. This improvement is driven by three key elements:
•
•
•
•

Our Self Assessment document (for use with OfSTED)
The Children’s Services Single Delivery Plan
The Ofsted Action Plan which focuses effort on what we must prioritise
The leadership of Members and officers in delivering the required changes

4.2

The Council’s progress is closely monitored by this Committee and the Achieving Outstanding
Board.

5.

KEY ISSUES

5.1

As of 14th October, the current vacancy gap is 24 FTE against an establishment of 83. This figure
includes pipeline leavers and pipeline starters. Presently there are 22 locum social workers who
are covering vacancies and a peripatetic locum social work team consisting of 7 social workers
who are covering 2 vacancies and the cover of Maternity Leave for permanent staff.
The new Permanent Team Manager for Leaving Care started in post on 3rd October. Further to
this, a Permanent Team Manager has been appointed to First Response. Safer Recruitment
checks are being undertaken with a proposed start date in December 2014.
A further Team Manager applicant has been invited for interview for a permanent role in First
Response and an interview has been organised for a Team Manager for Conference and Review.
Adverts have been placed in The Guardian Newspaper and Guardian Online for both Head of
Service and Team Managers.

59

Further adverts have been placed in September in Community Care Online for Social Workers
and Team Managers.
The new cohort of NQSWs has been recruited and they will begin in their posts once their HCPC
registrations are confirmed, along with the necessary HR checks. When they take up their posts it
will enable us to release agency staff and, as a result, reduce our costs.
We are exploring with the Department for Education the option of a bursary funded scheme.

Developments:

•

A Working Group has been formed to review and discuss the potential for Peterborough to
develop and manage our own supply of agency staff. It’s clear that savings can be made
by not having the additional costs that we are currently being charged by agency
providers. However, work needs to be completed in regard to how this can be achieved
and implemented successfully. Every agency worker costs our council almost double that
of a permanent worker.

•

A proposal has also been put together to develop our own Social Worker Academy for
Newly Qualified Social Workers. The longer term benefits of this will mean that we will
have an establishment full of permanent Social Workers. This will also mean that for a
sustained period of time, the NQSW establishment will increase on the current level of
15%. We need to ensure the appropriate level of NQSWs and experienced staff to
undertake Child Protection visiting and the more complex work.

•

How we recruit and retain our Team Managers has been reviewed this year. It was
decided that a Market Rate Supplement will be added to the salaries of our permanent
Team Managers and vacant posts. This is crucial for the retention of our Team Managers
as well as an added attraction and incentive for any new applicants for vacant posts we
currently have.

•

For the last quarter, exit interviews have taken place for both permanent staff and agency
staff that have left. The information received from these interviews is of enormous benefit,
as it tells the department how the member of staff and other staff are feeling at work. We
have had 12 social workers leave the department over the last year to become agency
staff. Some staff have left because of personal reasons. None have left dissatisfied with
the support or supervision offered.

•

The Social Work Careers website has been refreshed completely from the original Head
and Heart Website. Included in this is a new strapline which is ‘Make the difference – Give
back the dream’.

•

The refreshed branding and new strapline has been incorporated into all of the external
advertising for Heads of Service, Team Managers and Social Work staff.

60

Workforce - social worker posts

13.0

15.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

3.0

14.8

14.8

2.0

3.0
16.0

16.0

17.0

13.0
11.0

2.0

10.0

2.0

2.0

3.0

2.0
5.0
2.0

3.0
9.0

12.0

12.0

70.0

18.0
13.0

7.0

7.0

21.0

21.0

58.0

58.0

Oct-14

11.0

1.0

7.0

7.0
7.0

7.0

17.0

17.0

22.0

55.3

55.5

53.5

Aug-14

10.0

1.0

Jul-14

1.0

Jun-14

1.0

80.0

Sep-14

90.0

21.0
17.0

17.0

60.0

50.0

71.3

68.9

67.3

67.7

67.8

67.8

69.8

68.2

67.8

68.8

71.2

70.2

68.4

67.4
62.8

63.8

60.3

56.5

57.8

May-14

72.3

30.0

Apr-14

40.0

20.0

Permanent

Agency

Maternity cover

Peripatetic

Establishment

Mar-14

Feb-14

Jan-14

Dec-13

Nov-13

Oct-13

Sep-13

Aug-13

Jul-13

Jun-13

Apr-13

May-13

Mar-13

Jan-13

Feb-13

Dec-12

Nov-12

0.0

Oct-12

10.0

Performance and Practice Management 10 October 2014

6.

IMPLICATIONS

6.1

All local authorities are struggling to recruit permanent staff. We are looking at ways, outlined
above, to attract good quality staff, whilst reducing our spend on agency staff.

7.

CONSULTATION

7.1

Not applicable.

8.

NEXT STEPS

8.1

This Committee will continue to receive a regular update on progress.

9.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

9.1

None.

10.

APPENDICES

10.1 None.

61

This page is intentionally left blank

62

CREATING OPPORTUNITIES & TACKLING
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 8

10 NOVEMBER 2014

Public Report

Report of the Executive Director of Children’s Services
Contact Officer(s) – Sue Westcott
Contact Details - 863606

DIRECTOR’S REPORT FOR SOCIAL CARE PRACTICE AND PERFORMANCE
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

The purpose of this report is to continue to update the committee on sustained performance in
Children’s Social Care.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

To note the progress made to achieve an OfSTED rating of good/outstanding.

3.

LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY

3.1

The Sustainable Community Strategy identifies “Improving Health” and “Supporting Vulnerable
People” as priorities. A quality Children’s Social Care service is key to delivering the right support
for vulnerable children and families.

4.

BACKGROUND

4.1

Following an Ofsted Inspection in August 2011, the Council has engaged in a programme to
secure rapid improvement. This improvement will be driven by three key elements:
•
•
•
•

Self Assessment document (for use with OfSTED)
The Children’s Services Single Delivery Plan
The Ofsted Action Plan which focuses effort on what we must prioritise
The leadership of Members and officers in delivering the required changes

4.2

The Council’s progress is closely monitored by this Committee and the Internal Improvement
Board.

5.

KEY ISSUES

5.1

Highlights (as of September 2014)
•
•
•
•

5.2

Early help assessments at all-time high
Thresholds applied appropriately in respect of referrals
High number of children subject to a Child Protection Plan/Child Protection enquiries
Agency rate increased – proposals for an Academy to CMT

CAFs (Early Help Assessments)
57 CAFs were completed with a rolling rate of 194.2. This has already exceeded the target by
31.3%.

63

5.3

Number of Contacts
928 contacts came into the service, of which 257 went on to referral. This is a conversion rate of
27.7% which is higher than last month. Year to date conversion is 25.2% which is similar to last
year. There is no comparative local authority data either nationally or regionally.
The content of the referrals is predominantly ‘101’s from the police mainly concerning Domestic
Violence which needs recording on our database.
Of the 724 contacts in August, 284 (39%) came from the police and, of these, just 22%
progressed to referral. ‘101’ notifications are generated by individual officers and PCSOs and
cover a wide range of issues. Some are very detailed whilst others are not. There were 68
contacts from Housing in August. These were mostly notifications from Cross Keys that they were
issuing a warning or eviction notice. This is an agreed process but we know that there was an
administrative error in August which resulted in notifications occurring twice in some instances.
This was addressed with Cross Keys and hasn’t occurred since.

5.4

Number of Referrals and Re-referrals
There were 257 referrals in September, which is higher than the previous month of 139, partly due
to the school holidays. . The rate of referrals at 595.6 is just 1% below target and favourably
compares with our regional comparators – 634% and closer to the national average of 520.7 % in
2012-13.This means that we are effectively managing the front door workflow through from the
contact centre.
This conversion rate is above target and higher than the national and regional rate at 77.9% and
74% respectively. This means that our conversion rate is spot on and thresholds being applied
correctly.

There are nine cases which did not progress from referral to assessment. One case has a
Liquidlogic issue and the manager is waiting for this to be rolled back. The other eight cases (two
families of five children and three) are children who are subject to Child Protection plans in other
local authority areas and a request has been received by Peterborough for an incoming Child
Protection Case Conference. The process when a family move into Peterborough from another
area and their children are subject to a Child Protection plan is that the requesting local authority
retains case responsibility until the Child Protection case conference has taken place. This

64

request for a case conference generates a referral. Five of the above children have, until recently,
been residing in Scotland and there has been a delay in transfer conference taking place due to
uncertainty about the family remaining in this area. It has now been confirmed that they are
securing a tenancy in Peterborough and the transfer process has commenced. Peterborough
Children’s Services have undertaken a number of safeguarding visits on Scotland’s behalf in the
interim period. The other three children are being managed by their current local authorities and
these cases have been allocated to a social worker in Peterborough who will pick up full
responsibility at the Child Protection conference.
The year to date re-referral rate at 19% is lower than at the same time last year (23.3%) and lower
than our outturn position for last year which was 21.9%.
This rate compares very favourably with our statistical and national authorities at 24.3% and 29%
respectively.
There were 49 re-referrals which relate to 33 families. In summary the majority of the re-referrals
centre around domestic violence incidents, parents’ mental health, parental drug and alcohol
misuse, a lack of engagement in the CAF process and homelessness.
5.5

5.6

Initial and Core Assessments

There are no open initial and core assessments, having continued to their conclusion.
Single Assessments

There were 231 single assessments completed during September. 90.6% of single assessments
completed up to the end of September have been completed in timescale.

5.7

There were 40 Single Assessments that were not completed within time which relate to 25
families. Two of these assessments were not completed as the family had left the area and the
case was transferred to the new local authority. Two children were not seen until The Child
Exploitation and Online Protection Centre (CEOP) had undertaken their investigation and visited
the family prior to any social work involvement. In all other cases a number of social work visits
were completed and information gathered from agencies within timescale although the
assessment was not completed on the system to evidence the work undertaken. As a result of this
the assessment shows as out of timescale. The Head of Service is making it clear that a
discussion between the Team Manager and Social Worker following the first visit needs to take
place to ensure the assessment response is commensurate with the content of the referral and
takes place within timescale.
Section 47 Enquiries
74 Child Protection enquiries were completed during September and 35 of them (47.3%) had the
outcome of a Child Protection Conference. The year to date figure is higher than this time last
year, but remains too high a conversion rate. The number of Child Protection enquiries is too high

65

denoting a protectionist, as opposed to a more supportive approach.

(April 2014, was the first time a target was set for conversion rates.)

5.8

Some dip sampling of these cases identified that there were 39 children (22 families) who
were subject to S47 enquiries that did not proceed to Initial Child Protection Conferences
(ICPC) - 2 related to disclosures made by children who were already looked after children, 1
child became looked after as a result of the S47, 1 child did not reside within the
Peterborough area. In 6 of the cases mother took appropriate action to ensure the children
were safeguarded, 2 did ultimately proceed to ICPC. In 5 of the cases allegations were not
substantiated and in the remaining 18 the child was not deemed to be at risk following the
outcome of the S47. The S47 investigations were deemed as appropriate by the manager as
meeting threshold. These cases will be audited by the DCS.
Initial Child Protection Conferences (ICPC)
The number of children having a Child Protection Conference remains too high and is 38.6%
above target.

5.9
Number of Children subject to a Child Protection Plan
The number increased for a second consecutive month to 246 at the end of September. The rate
per 10,000 at 54.7% is 26.8% higher than the target and over the rate of our statistical neighbours
and the overall England result (43.1% and 37.9% respectively). The target translates to 194
children.
Similarly the rolling rate of children subject to a plan at 71.5 (per 10,000) is considerably higher
than our statistical and national neighbours.

66

There were 39 children from 20 families who commenced Child Protection registration during the
month of September.
5.10 Child Protection visits in timescale
91.8% of children with a Child Protection Plan received a statutory visit within timescale. This is an
improvement on the low performance in the corresponding month last year (September 2013) of
83.8%.
We have reasons for all these cases where there has been delay. This is a mixture of children
returning to their country of origin, unborn babies and data input error.
5.11 Number of Looked After Children
At the end of September, 379 children were looked after: a net increase of 3 since the last report.
The number of looked after children remains relatively high compared to previous years and is
currently equivalent to a rate of 84.2% per 10,000. We have audited all children subject to Section
20 to see if there is any drift and are now checking out the findings. Early indicators are that few
have drifted and plans are clear.

Placement Orders:
There are 75 children and young people with Placement Orders (as at 1st October). These are:
•

21 children placed for adoption

•

20 children have active family finding plans or linked with adopters

•

34 children need their Placement Order revoking

Additional resources and management support have been arranged to increase the speed of
rescinding Placement Orders where the plan has moved away from adoption. The Head of
Service will be tracking the progress of this work and supervising a social worker who will be
brought in specifically to progress these cases through the Court. In addition, the adoption service

67

will progress six applications.
Good performance: Placement Stability
70.2 % of children aged under 16 who have had a placement for more than two years remains
steady.
Review Timescales
From 1st April there have been no children who have a statutory Looked After Children review out
of timescale.
Adoptions
There have been 15 adoptions which is equal to the number at the same time last year and this is
good performance.
5.12
Update on MASH (Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub)
The MASH will operate from two bases, one at Godmanchester in Cambridgeshire and the other
from Bayard Place in Peterborough. There will not be a discrete new team at Peterborough, but
as now, the core function and business of the MASH (primarily the conduct of Section 47 Strategy
Discussions and Enquiries) will be met by the First Response teams. The key changes that are to
come into effect in the near future that will significantly enhance the information sharing and
decision-making processes will be the co-location and integration of other key partners.
Plans are in place to remodel the First Response teams at the front door of Children’s Services to
create a dedicated screening team by end of October 2014.This team will include the four Child
Sexual Exploitation social workers and colleagues from partner agencies are planned to relocate
from current locations within Bayard Place to this team on the 2nd floor of Bayard Place.
A CAF/Connecting Families coordinator has been recruited. Cambridgeshire Constabulary have
two colleagues from their Child Sexual Exploitation and Missing Persons team at Bayard Place to
further strengthen and develop the relationship with our own CSE/Missing children resources, and
Peterborough City Council Adults Service are also committed to joining the MASH.
Agreement in principle has been reached for Peterborough Women’s Aid to locate a support
worker at Bayard Place, which will contribute to Section 47 discussions, and also to aid the
provision of early assistance to victims of Domestic Abuse at a lower level than might otherwise
be picked up by other existing services. A funding bid has been placed with a decision expected in
December 2014, although it is anticipated that a part-time resource will be available (3 half days)
from early November.
Agreement has been reached for Children’s Social Care and Health to jointly fund and recruit a
new full-time Health Practitioner to sit within the First Response Dictated screening / MASH team
at Bayard Place and a job description has been agreed with a recruitment plan to follow.
Stronger links too are being developed with colleagues in the Housing Department, Integrated
Offender Management Service and other agencies such as drug and alcohol services, so that in
addition to those co-located services, there is a network of single points of contact with other
agencies and services that can be called upon, as required, to contribute to strategy discussions
and risk management strategies.
The MASH Project Board continues to meet and has produced a development plan that pulls
together, in one document, the different strands of activity that are currently underway. The Head
of Service (First Response) is a vice-chair of the Board. The MASH operational management
group also meets regularly and is focussed on developing practice and processes to improve
consistency and outcomes. A First Response team manager is a member of this group.

68

The structure chart for Children’s Social Care is attached as Appendix 1.
5.13
Update on CSE (Child Sexual Exploitation)
•

Stephen Rimmer, Director General of the Home Office, visited Peterborough on 16th
October to learn about the ways in which we have dealt with CSE. His feedback was
very positive and full of praise for the CSE team.

•

The work on CSE is being presented to the All Party Policy meeting on 23rd October
and to the Eastern Region Children’s Improvement Board on 17th November (as at the
time of writing this report).

•

The four dedicated CSE social workers are co-located as part of the screening/MASH
team based in Bayard Place. As at 14th October, the team are working with 67
children.

•

Recommendations from the Jay report have been taken into consideration and actions
implemented.

•

The work of the CSE team is being presented to All Party Policy at their meeting on
23rd October 2014.

•

A lessons learnt document was presented by the police at the LSCB Partnership Gold
Group (Operation Erle) meeting on 16th October 2014.

5.14

5.15 Workforce
This item is being covered by a separate report to Scrutiny Committee entitled Recruitment and
Retention of Social Workers.
Raising Quality of Practice / Achieving Outstanding

5.16

•

Focus on Children in Need – consultant working alongside social workers to close off
children in need cases open for more than 6 months to reduce pressure on the front line

•

Quality assuring legal documentation and working alongside social workers to ensure
robust analysis of work

•

Measuring CSE activity against the Jay report recommendations

•

Focus on chronologies

Early Intervention Activity
An external audit of the Early Help Assessment and Team Around the Child processes was
completed in September. This followed the same framework as an OfSTED inspection,
concentrating on the journey and experience of the child or young person as they are supported
by targeted early help services. The overall outcome of this audit was very positive, mostly
identifying good practice with a number of outstanding features. The recommendations within the
audit have now all been captured as part of an action plan, which is in the process of being
implemented by the appropriate managers in the Communities and Children’s Services
directorates.
The council has successfully published a ‘Local Offer’ of services to children and young people
and their families who have special educational needs and/or disabilities in line with our
responsibilities under the Children and Families Act 2014. We have also developed procedures
and templates relating to the assessment and delivery of Education, Health and Care plans and a
policy covering Personal Budgets. Development of these reforms has been co-produced with
parents throughout, with Family Voice playing a lead role.

69

There is still more to do. The Local Offer website will be redesigned in the coming months to make
it more user friendly, while the implementation of policies around Education, Health and Care
plans and Personal Budgets will require continued monitoring to ensure that systems are working
well. Family Voice remain involved and are supporting us with this continuing work.
Until the last quarter, the local performance for breast-feeding continuation at 6-8 weeks in
Peterborough has been consistently below target. Improving our performance in this area has
therefore been the focus of concerted activity by all those involved, most notably, midwives and
health visitors. Local performance is now above 47%, compared with a national target of 45%.
This is a significant improvement on average performance in the preceding 12 months which was
typically around or just below 40%.
The quality of our early years’ settings continues to improve; the most recent data on childinspected by OfSTED indicates that 77% are good or outstanding, which places us in the middle
of our statistical neighbours. This is an improvement from previous local performance of 69% of
child-minders achieving these results. This reflects the impact of a new focus on the provision of
targeted advice and guidance being offered to all child minders achieving an inspection outcome
less positive than good.
A similar programme of advice and targeted interventions has been provided to our non-domestic
childcare settings, 83% of which are assessed as good or outstanding compared with a national
average of 82%. The one inadequate setting was provided with an intensive period of support and
challenge and has now achieved a ‘Good’ rating in its most recent inspection.
6.

IMPLICATIONS

6.1

Sustained improvement.

7.

CONSULTATION

7.1

Partner agencies, parents and children are well engaged in all the social care activity.

8.

NEXT STEPS

8.1

This Committee will continue to receive a regular update on progress.

9.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act
1985

9.1

•
•
•
•

10.

Ofsted Inspection of Safeguarding: Peterborough 6th September 2011
Ofsted Unannounced Inspection of contact referral and assessment arrangements 3rd March
2011
Ofsted Safeguarding and Looked after Children Inspection: Peterborough 21st May 2010
Ofsted Local Authority Arrangements for the Protection of Children: inspection report 8 March
2013

APPENDICES

10.1 Appendix 1: Children’s Social Care structure chart.

70

CSE/Missing Persons
Coordinator

LSCB

7 x Conference and Review
Chairs

Team Manager
QA Team

Head of Service
QA & Safeguarding

CAF Coordinator

APPENDIX 1: CSC Structure Chart October 2014

71

Social Worker x 2

Health Vistor

LAC Team 2

LAC Team 1

CSE Police

Children's Disability Service

Leaving Care Team

Head of Service
Looked After Children (LAC) and Leaving
Care

Support Worker x 2

DV Womens AId Worker

CSE x 4

First Response Team 1 /
Screening Team Manager

First Response Team 2

First Response Team 3

Missing Police

First Response Team 1 /
Screening Team

Head of Service
First Response Teams and
MASH

Assistant Director
Safeguarding, Families & Communities

Adoption Team

Fostering Team

Head of Service
Adoption and Fostering

Head of Service
Family Support

Family Support Team 4

Family Support Team 3

Family Support Team 2

Family Support Team 1

This page is intentionally left blank

72

CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 9

10 NOVEMBER 2014

Public Report

Report of the Executive Director of Communities and Targeted Services
Contact Officer(s) – Paulina Ford/Ian Phillips
Contact Details - 452508/863849

SCRUTINY IN A DAY – ONE YEAR ON
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

To update the Committee on proposals for reviewing the joint Scrutiny in a Day on the impacts
of welfare reform.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

To agree to hold a further joint scrutiny event on 9th January 2015 to review the progress made
against the lines of enquiry developed at the Scrutiny in a Day event on the impacts of welfare
reform.

3.

LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY

3.1

The Welfare Benefit system has undergone significant changes over the last two years. Further
changes to the benefit system will take place during the next year and likely into the new
Parliament. The impacts of these changes may be considerable for some people both in and
out of work.

3.2

The purpose of the joint scrutiny approach to this area will be to understand the impact to
individuals and identify measures that the council can adopt to protect the most vulnerable
people in our community.

3.3

There are links to improving health, education and skills, empowering communities, increasing
economic activity and building community cohesion.

4.

BACKGROUND

4.1

On 17th January 2014, each Scrutiny Committee and Commission agreed to participate in a
ground-breaking ‘Scrutiny in a Day’ event, entitled ‘Understanding and Managing the Impacts of
Welfare Reform on Communities in Peterborough’, to develop an in-depth understanding of the
issues and opportunities and to scrutinise responses on this cross-cutting agenda. The event
provided all scrutiny councillors and other participants with a chance to understand the
Government’s strategy on Welfare Reform, and how it affects Peterborough.

4.2

As a result, a number of recommendations and lines of enquiry were developed – these are set
out in annex A.

5.

KEY ISSUES

5.1

Since the Scrutiny in a Day event, a number of work streams have been developed that can
demonstrate the impact that the council is having to support vulnerable people. It is proposed
that a follow up half day event is held on Friday 9 January 2015 to review and update all
Scrutiny Committees and Commissions on the lines of enquiry. The event will also be an

73

opportunity for Scrutiny Committees and Commissions to develop any further lines of enquiry.
6.

IMPLICATIONS

6.1

None

7.

CONSULTATION

7.1

None

8.

NEXT STEPS

8.1

A programme will be developed for 9th January 2015 and invites sent to all councillors to attend
the event.

9.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

9.1

None

10.

APPENDICES
Annex A attached – Recommendations and lines of enquiry

74

Annex A

Recommendations and Lines of Enquiry from each Scrutiny
Committee or Commission
Four of the five Scrutiny Committees or Commissions produced a shortlist of key lines of
enquiry or recommendations that those present felt they may want to focus on during the
2014/15 municipal year. These are set out as follows:
Creating Opportunities and Tackling Inequalities
1. To explore the impact of welfare reform on young people and their attainment in mainstream
education.
2. To identify barriers to work and explore how early years provision, support and related services
can help parents into employment.
3. To understand the impact and needs arising from welfare reform and ensure that initiatives
such as Connecting Families can meet these needs.
Strong and Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee
1. To explore the impact of the cessation of the Local Welfare Provision funding from Department
of Work and Pensions and develop recommendations to Cabinet on how the Peterborough
Community Assistance Scheme can be sustained.
2. To raise awareness of the ongoing reforms, the impacts and support available with
communities, councillors and partners. Develop opportunities for sharing experiences caused
by welfare reforms between communities, councillors and partners.
3. To explore opportunities of how investing in local community groups can help to prevent and
tackle poverty.
4. To receive a report on the extent of gambling within the city and develop actions to mitigate the
impact of gambling such as education, awareness raising and prevention.
Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues
1. To create an accessible, visible and customer-orientated access point for advice
2. To receive and scrutinise a report from Public Health on planned initiatives relating to healthy
eating, food and nutrition along with the links to poverty and other lifestyle factors
3. When receiving the Public Health report above, to look at links between the nutrition and
uptake of school meals and educational attainment.
4. To receive and scrutinise a report on the impact of poverty on public health and explore how
investing in measures to tackle poverty can improve health outcomes.
Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee
1. To consider the Council’s response to gambling and to devise a holistic approach to combatting
the economic threats posed by gambling and vice
2. To understand the role that the voluntary sector can play in helping the council to deliver its key
objectives. To foster closer links into and between the voluntary sector and review how the
Council can support this
3. To scrutinise the Affordable Housing Capital Strategy to enable the Committee to consider
recommendations relating to social housing.
Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities
As the remit of the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities is cross-cutting, members will
consider which of the recommendations and lines of enquiry above they wish to pursue
alongside new suggestions that have emerged since the event.

75

This page is intentionally left blank

76

CREATING OPPORUTNITIES AND TACKLING
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 10

10 NOVEMBER 2014

Public Report

Report of the Director of Governance
Report Author – Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny
Contact Details – 01733 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk
FORWARD PLAN OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

This is a regular report to the Creating Opportunities and Tackling Inequalities Scrutiny
Committee outlining the content of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

That the Committee identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme.

3.

BACKGROUND

3.1

The latest version of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions is attached at Appendix 1. The
Plan contains those Executive decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the
Cabinet or individual Cabinet Member(s) can take and any new Executive decisions to be taken
after 14 November 2014.

3.2

The information in the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions provides the Committee with the
opportunity of considering whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these Executive
decisions, or to request further information.

3.3

If the Committee wished to examine any of the Executive decisions, consideration would need to
be given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme.

3.4

As the Forward Plan is published fortnightly any version of the Forward Plan published after
dispatch of this agenda will be tabled at the meeting.

4.

CONSULTATION

4.1

Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan of
Executive Decisions.

5.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

None
6.

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 – Forward Plan of Executive Decisions

77

This page is intentionally left blank

78

79

PETERBOROUGH CITY
COUNCIL’S FORWARD PLAN
OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
PUBLISHED: 17 OCTOBER 2014

FORWARD PLAN
PART 1 – KEY DECISIONS

AB

In the period commencing 28 days after the date of publication of this Plan, Peterborough City Council's Executive intends to take 'key decisions' on the issues set out below in
Part 1. Key decisions relate to those executive decisions which are likely to result in the Council spending or saving money in excess of £500,000 and/or have a significant impact
on two or more wards in Peterborough.
If the decision is to be taken by an individual Cabinet Member, the name of the Cabinet Member is shown against the decision, in addition to details of the Councillor’s portfolio. If
the decision is to be taken by the Cabinet, this too is shown against the decision and its members are as listed below:
Cllr Cereste (Leader); Cllr Elsey; Cllr Fitzgerald; Cllr Hiller, Cllr Holdich (Deputy Leader); Cllr North; Cllr Seaton; Cllr Serluca and Cllr Scott.
This Plan should be seen as an outline of the proposed decisions for the forthcoming month and it will be updated on a fortnightly basis to reflect new key-decisions. Each new
Plan supersedes the previous Plan and items may be carried over into forthcoming Plans. Any questions on specific issues included on the Plan should be included on the form
which appears at the back of the Plan and submitted to Gemma George, Senior Governance Officer, Chief Executive’s Department, Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax
08702 388039). Alternatively, you can submit your views via e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268.
PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISION IN PRIVATE
Whilst the majority of the Executive’s business at the Cabinet meetings listed in this Plan will be open to the public and media organisations to attend, there will be some business
to be considered that contains, for example, confidential, commercially sensitive or personal information. In these circumstances the meeting may be held in private, and on the
rare occasion this applies, notice will be given within Part 2 of this document, ‘notice of intention to hold meeting in private’. A further formal notice of the intention to hold the
meeting, or part of it, in private, will also be given 28 clear days in advance of any private meeting in accordance with The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings
and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

80

The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which these decisions will be discussed (unless a notice of intention to hold the meeting in private has
been given).
PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS
For complete transparency relating to the work of the Executive, this Plan also includes an overview of non-key decisions to be taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members,
these decisions are listed at Part 3 and will be updated on a weekly basis.
You are entitled to view any documents listed on the Plan, or obtain extracts from any documents listed or subsequently submitted to the decision maker prior to the decision
being made, subject to any restrictions on disclosure. There is no charge for viewing the documents, although charges may be made for photocopying or postage. Documents
listed on the notice and relevant documents subsequently being submitted can be requested from Gemma George, Senior Governance Officer, Chief Executive’s Department,
Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 08702 388038), e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268. For each decision a public report will
be available from the Governance Team one week before the decision is taken.
All decisions will be posted on the Council's website: www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedecisions. If you wish to make comments or representations regarding the 'key decisions'
outlined in this Plan, please submit them to the Governance Support Officer using the form attached. For your information, the contact details for the Council's various service
departments are incorporated within this Plan.

PART 1 – FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS

KEY DECISIONS FROM 14 NOVEMBER 2014

81

KEY DECISION
REQUIRED

DECISION
MAKER

DATE
DECISION
EXPECTED

RELEVANT
SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION

CONTACT DETAILS /
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT
TO THE DECISION
SUBMITTED TO THE
DECISION MAKER

Residential Care –
KEY14/19NOV14/01
To authorise the
Director of Adult Social
Care to make residential
placements.

Councillor
Wayne
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member
for Adult Social
Care

November
2014

Strong and
Supportive
Communities

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders

Rob Henchy
Commissioning
Manager
Tel: 01733 452429
Rob.henchy@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Future of Solar and
Wind Projects –
KEY/14NOV14/01
To approve the cessation
of the solar/wind projects
at Newborough Farm and
Morris Fen and to
consider the way forward
in respect of America
Farm.

Cabinet

November
2014

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

John Harrison
Executive Director
Resources
Tel: 01733 452520
John.harrison@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

A14 Cambridge to
Huntingdon
Improvements –
KEY14/14NOV14/02
To approve the local
funding arrangements for
the improvement works.

Councillor Peter
Hiller
Cabinet Member
for Planning and
Housing
Services

November
2014

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders

Mark Speed
Transport and
Infrastructure
Commissioning
Manager
Tel: 01733 317471
Mark.speed@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

PREVIOUSLY ADVERTISED DECISIONS
Delivery of the Council's
Capital Receipt
Programme through the
Sale of Dickens Street
Car Park - KEY/03JUL/11

Councillor David
Seaton
Cabinet Member
for Resources

October
2014

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Consultation will
take place with
the Cabinet
Member, Ward
councillors,
relevant internal
departments &
external
stakeholders as
appropriate.

Richard Hodgson
Head of Strategic
Projects
Tel: 01733 384535
richard.hodgson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Councillor Nigel
North
Cabinet Member
for Communities
and
Environment
Capital

October
2014

Strong and
Supportive
Communities

Relevant Internal
Departments.

Russ Carr
Care & Repair
Manager
Tel: 01733 863864
russ.carr@peterboroug
h.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

To authorise the Chief
Executive, in consultation
with the Solicitor to the
Council, Executive Director –
Strategic Resources, the
Corporate Property Officer
and the Cabinet Member
Resources, to negotiate and
conclude the sale of Dickens
Street Car Park.
For Cabinet to consider
future options for service
delivery.

82

Care and Repair
Framework Agreement KEY/18DEC12/01
To approve a framework
agreement and schedule of
rates to deliver disabled
facility grant work,
specifically providing
disabled access to toilet and
washing facilities and
associated work in domestic
properties.

83

KEY DECISION
REQUIRED

DECISION
MAKER

DATE
DECISION
EXPECTED

RELEVANT
SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION

CONTACT DETAILS /
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT
TO THE DECISION
SUBMITTED TO THE
DECISION MAKER

Section 75 Agreement
with the Clinical
Commissioning Group
(CCG) for the Provision
of a Joint Child Health
and Wellbeing
Commissioning Unit KEY/21FEB14/01

Councillor
Marco Cereste
Leader of the
Council and
Cabinet Member
for Growth,
Strategic
Planning,
Housing,
Economic
Development
and Business
Engagement

October
2014

Scrutiny
Commission
for Health
Issues

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Oliver Hayward
Head of Business
Management
Tel: 01733 863910
oliver.hayward@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Councillor David
Seaton
Cabinet Member
for Resources

October
2014

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Simon Webber
Capital Projects Officer
Tel: 01733 384545
simon.webber@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Authorisation for the entry
into a statutory Section 75
Agreement, for an initial two
year period, with the CCG for
the provision of a borderline
and Peterborough joint child
health and wellbeing
commissioning unit.

Sale of Greenwood
House KEY/21MAR14/02
Delivery of the Council’s
Capital Receipt
Programme through the
sale of Greenwood House,
South Parade.

84

KEY DECISION
REQUIRED

DECISION
MAKER

DATE
DECISION
EXPECTED

RELEVANT
SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION

CONTACT DETAILS /
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT
TO THE DECISION
SUBMITTED TO THE
DECISION MAKER

Sale of the Herlington
Centre KEY/21MAR14/03
Delivery of the Council’s
capital receipts
programme through the
sale of the Herlington
Centre, Orton Malborne.

Councillor David
Seaton
Cabinet Member
for Resources

October
2014

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Simon Webber
Capital Projects Officer
Tel: 01733 384545
simon.webber@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Peterborough City
Council Customer
Strategy 2014 KEY/21MAR14/06
To approve the Customer
Strategy. The vision is to
provide a range of highquality services whilst
maximising customer
satisfaction and delivering
these services through
different channels at the
lowest reasonable cost,
whilst also reducing or
diverting demand.

Cabinet

8 December
2014

Strong and
Supportive
Scrutiny
Committee

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Ricky Fuller
Head of Strategic
Commissioning/Transfo
rmation
Tel: 01733 452482
ricky.fuller@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Formalise Integrated
Community Equipment
Service Funding and
Commissioning
Arrangements KEY/18APR14/01
To formalise integrated
community equipment
service joint funding
arrangements.

Councillor
Wayne
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member
for Adult Social
Care

October
2014

Scrutiny
Commission
for Health
Issues

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Nick Blake
Head of
Commissioning for
Older People, Physical
Disabilities and
Sensory Impairment
Tel: 01733 452406
nick.blake@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

85

KEY DECISION
REQUIRED

DECISION
MAKER

Date
decision
expected

RELEVANT
SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION

CONTACT DETAILS /
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT
TO THE DECISION
SUBMITTED TO THE
DECISION MAKER

Award of Contract for
Build of a Waste
Transfer Station KEY/18APR14/02
To award a contract for
the build of a waste
transfer station.

Councillor
Gavin Elsey
Cabinet Member
for Street Scene,
Waste
Management and
Communications

October
2014

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Paul Robertson
Waste Project Officer
Tel: 01733 864740
paul.robertson@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Award of Contract for
Build of a Household
Recycling Centre KEY/18APR14/03
To award a contract for
the build of a household
recycling centre.

Councillor
Gavin Elsey
Cabinet Member
for Street Scene,
Waste
Management and
Communications

October
2014

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Paul Robertson
Waste Project Officer
Tel: 01733 864740
paul.robertson@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Future of the Eight
Former Play Centres KEY/02MAY14/01
To approve the
recommendations for the
eight former play centres.

Councillor Nigel
North
Cabinet Member
for Communities
and
Environment
Capital

October
2014

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Cate Harding
Neighbourhood
Manager
Tel: 317497
cate.harding@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

KEY DECISION
REQUIRED

DECISION
MAKER

DATE
DECISION
EXPECTED

RELEVANT
SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION

CONTACT DETAILS /
REPORT AUTHOR

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT
TO THE DECISION
SUBMITTED TO THE
DECISION MAKER

Print Managed Services
- KEY/13JUN14/01

Councillor David
Seaton
Cabinet Member
for Resources

November
2014

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Ricky Fuller
Head of Strategic
Commissioning/Transfo
rmation
Tel: 01733 452482
ricky.fuller@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Councillor
Marco Cereste
Leader of the
Council and
Cabinet Member
for Growth,
Strategic
Planning,
Housing,
Economic
Development
and Business
Engagement

October
2014

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Simon Machen
Director of Growth and
Regeneration
Tel: 01733 453475
simon.machen@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

To enable Council officers to
be able to print, copy and
scan.

Joint Venture
Implementation KEY/25JUL14/02
To approve the
implementation of the
Joint Venture.

86

87

KEY DECISION
REQUIRED

DECISION
MAKER

DATE
DECISION
EXPECTED

RELEVANT
SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION

CONTACT DETAILS /
REPORT AUTHOR

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT
TO THE DECISION
SUBMITTED TO THE
DECISION MAKER

Installation of Solar
Voltaic (PV) Panels to
Schools KEY/25AUG14/01
To award a contract for
the installation of Solar
Voltaic (PV) Panels and
energy performance
measures to schools
under the renewable
energy and energy
efficiency scheme and
energy performance
contracts (ENPC)

Councillor David
Seaton
Cabinet Member
for Resources

October
2014

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Steven Morris
Client Property
Manager
Tel: 01733 384657
steven.morris@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

New Model for
Transforming Day
Opportunities for Adults
Under 65 KEY/25AUG14/02
To approve the proposed
model for implementation.

Cabinet

November
2014

Scrutiny
Commission
for Health
Issues

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Mubarak Darbar
Head of
Commissioning
Learning Disabilities
Tel: 01733 452509
mubarak.darbar@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Residential and Nursing
Care Contracts KEY/22AUG14/03
To seek approval for the
award of contracts to
providers of 24 hour
residential and nursing
care support.

Councillor
Wayne
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member
for Adult Social
Care

October
2014

Scrutiny
Commission
for Health
Issues

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Nick Blake
Head of
Commissioning for
Older People, Physical
Disabilities and
Sensory Impairment
Tel: 01733 452406
nick.blake@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

88

KEY DECISION
REQUIRED

DECISION
MAKER

DATE
DECISION
EXPECTED

RELEVANT
SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION

CONTACT DETAILS /
REPORT AUTHOR

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT
TO THE DECISION
SUBMITTED TO THE
DECISION MAKER

Southfields Primary
School Expansion KEY/05SEP14/01
To authorise the
construction of an
extension to
accommodate the
expansion of Southfields
Primary School.

Councillor John
Holdich
Cabinet Member
for Education,
Skills and
University

October
2014

Creating
Opportunities
and Tackling
Inequalities

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Emma Everitt
Project Support Officer
Tel: 01733 863660
emma.everitt@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Renewable Energy and
Energy Efficiency
Scheme KEY/05SEP14/03

Councillor David
Seaton
Cabinet Member
for Resources

October
2014

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Steven Morris
Client Property
Manager
Tel: 01733 384657
steven.morris@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Care and Repair Heating
Framework Agreement –
KEY19SEP14/01
To approve a framework
agreement and schedule
of rates to deliver Repairs
Assistance grant work,
specifically the installation
of central heating systems
in domestic properties.

Councillor Peter
Hiller
Cabinet Member
for Planning and
Housing
Services

October
2014

Strong and
Supportive
Scrutiny
Committee

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders

Russ Carr
Care and Repair
Manager
Tel: 01733 863864
Russ.carr@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Fit to Rent Scheme –
KEY/17OCT14/01
To improve standards and
management of properties
in the private rented
sector.

Cabinet

8 December
2014

Strong and
Supportive
Scrutiny
Committee

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders

Belinda Child
Housing Strategic
Manager
Tel: 01733 863769
Belinda.child@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Installation of Solar
Photovoltaic (PV) Panels to
PCC’s Commercial
Properties including
industrial estates.

89

KEY DECISION
REQUIRED

DECISION
MAKER

DATE
DECISION
EXPECTED

RELEVANT
SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION

CONTACT DETAILS /
REPORT AUTHOR

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT
TO THE DECISION
SUBMITTED TO THE
DECISION MAKER

Invest to Save Scheme –
KEY/17OCT14/02
To approve investment in
housing in Peterborough.

Councillor
Marco Cereste
Leader of the
Council and
Cabinet Member
for Growth,
Strategic
Planning and
Housing

October
2014

Strong and
Supportive
Scrutiny
Committee

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders

Steven Pilsworth
Head of Strategic
Finance
Tel: 01733 384564
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Sale of Former London
Road Allotments –
KEY/17OCT14/03
To authorise the
negotiation and conclusion
of the sale of the former
London Road Allotments,
Peterborough.

Councillor David
Seaton
Cabinet Member
for Resources

October
2014

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders

David Gray
Capital Projects Officer
Tel: 01733 384531
David.gray@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Libraries and
Community Services
Review KEY/03NOV14/01
For Cabinet to consider
future options for service
delivery.

Cabinet

November
2014

Consultation will
take place with
the Cabinet
Member, Ward
councillors,
relevant internal
departments &
external
stakeholders as
appropriate.

Paul Stevenette
Programme Manager
Tel: 01733 452475
Paul.stevenette@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Strong and
Supportive
Scrutiny
Committee

PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISIONS IN PRIVATE

KEY DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN IN PRIVATE
KEY DECISION
REQUIRED

DECISION
MAKER

NONE AT THE CURRENT TIME

DATE
DECISION
EXPECTED

RELEVANT
SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION

CONTACT DETAILS /
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT
TO THE DECISION
SUBMITTED TO THE
DECISION MAKER

90

PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS

NON-KEY DECISIONS

91

DECISION REQUIRED

DECISION
MAKER

DATE
DECISION
EXPECTED

RELEVANT
SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION

CONTACT DETAILS /
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT
TO THE DECISION
SUBMITTED TO THE
DECISION MAKER

Homelessness Strategy
To review and comment
on the Homelessness
Review and to agree the
proposed Homelessness
Strategy and recommend
to Council for adoption.

Cabinet

November
2014

Strong and
Supportive
Scrutiny
Committee

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders

Sean Evans
Housing Needs
Manager
Tel: 01733 864083
Sean.evans@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Introduction of a Respite
Care Policy for Adults
To approve the
introduction of a respite
policy for adults who are
eligible for social care
services.

Councillor
David Seaton
Cabinet
Member for
Resources

October 2014

Strong and
Supportive
Scrutiny
Committee

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders

Kim Sawyer
Director of Governance
Tel: 01733 452361
Kim.sawyer@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Anti-Bribery Policy
To approve the AntiBribery Policy

Councillor
David Seaton
Cabinet
Member for
Resources

October 2014

Strong and
Supportive
Scrutiny
Committee

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders

Kim Sawyer
Director of Governance
Tel: 01733 452361
Kim.sawyer@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

ND18 Discretionary Rate
Relief
To approve award of
Discretionary Rate Relief
for charities and similar
organisations and to reject
applications as
appropriate.

Councillor
David Seaton
Cabinet
Member for
Resources

October 2014

Strong and
Supportive
Scrutiny
Committee

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders

Richard Godfrey
ICT Strategy,
Infrastructure and
Programmes Manager
Tel: 01733 317989
Richard.godfrey@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

92

93

DECISION REQUIRED

DECISION
MAKER

DATE
DECISION
EXPECTED

RELEVANT
SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION

CONTACT DETAILS /
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT
TO THE DECISION
SUBMITTED TO THE
DECISION MAKER

Reform to Assessments
and Service Provision
For Children and Young
People who have
Special Educational
Needs and/or
Disabilities, Resulting
from the Children and
Families Act 2014
To approve the
implementation of the
changes arising from the
Children and Families Act
2014.

Councillor
John Holdich
Cabinet
Member for
Education,
Skills and
University

October 2014

Strong and
Supportive
Scrutiny
Committee

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders

Lou Williams
Assistant Director for
Commissioning
Tel: 01733 864139
Lou.williams@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Personal Budgets in
Peterborough
To agree to adopt
Peterborough’s Personal
Budget Policy Statement
as part of the revised
statutory duties that apply
to the Council as part of
the SEND reforms, under
the Children and Families
Act 2014.

Councillor
John Holdich
Cabinet
Member for
Education,
Skills and
University

October 2014

Strong and
Supportive
Scrutiny
Committee

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders

Carrie Gamble
Commissioner
Tel: 01733 863931
Carrie.gamble@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

Peterborough District
Hospital Site
To approve the acquisition
of part of the former
Peterborough District
Hospital site as a school
site and payment of £300k
to Land Improvement
Holdings.

Councillor
John Holdich
Cabinet
Member for
Education,
Skills and
University

October 2014

Strong and
Supportive
Scrutiny
Committee

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders

Alison Chambers
Assets and School
Place Planning Officer
Tel: 01733 863975
Alison.chambers@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

DECISION REQUIRED

DECISION
MAKER

DATE
DECISION
EXPECTED

RELEVANT
SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION

CONTACT DETAILS /
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT
TO THE DECISION
SUBMITTED TO THE
DECISION MAKER

Council Tax Benefit
Consultation
To agree the consultation
on Council Tax Benefit.

Cabinet
Member for
Resources

November
2014

Strong and
Supportive
Scrutiny
Committee

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders

Steven Pilsworth
Head of Corporate
Finance
Tel: 01733 384564
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there
will be any documents other
than the report and relevant
appendices to be published.

94

DIRECTORATE RESPONSIBILITIES
RESOURCES DEPARTMENT Executive Director's Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
Strategic Finance
Internal Audit
Schools Infrastructure (Assets and School Place Planning)
Corporate Property
Waste and Energy
Strategic Client Services (Enterprise Peterborough / Vivacity / SERCO including Customer Services, ICT and Business Support)
CHILDREN’S SERVICES DEPARTMENT Executive Director’s Office at Bayard Place, Broadway, PE1 1FB
Safeguarding Family and Communities
Education
School Improvement
Special Educational Needs / Inclusion and the Pupil Referral Service

95

ADULT SOCIAL CARE Executive Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
Care Services Delivery (Assessment and Care Management and Integrated Learning Disability Services)
Mental Health
Public Health (including Health Performance Management)
COMMUNITIES DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Bayard Place, Broadway, PE1 1FB
Strategic Commissioning
Safer Peterborough, Cohesion, Social Inclusion and Neighbourhood Management
GOVERNANCE DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
Communications
Legal and Governance Services
HR Business Relations (Training and Development, Occupational Health and Reward and Policy)
Strategic Regulatory Services
Performance Management
GROWTH AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT Director’s Office Stuart House, St Johns Street, Peterborough, PE1 5DD
Strategic Growth and Development Services
Strategic Housing
Planning Transport and Engineering (Development Management, Construction and Compliance, Infrastructure Planning and Delivery, Network
Management and Passenger Transport)
Commercial Operations (Strategic Parking and Commercial CCTV, City Centre, Markets and Commercial Trading and Tourism)

THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

96

97

Contact Officer: Paulina Ford

To review the work undertaken during 2013/14 and to consider the future
work programme of the Committee for 2014/15.

Contact Officer: Paulina Ford
Review of 2014/15 and Future Work Programme

Contact Officer: Sue Westcott
Improving Educational Outcomes Task and Finish Group Report

Contact Officer: Wendi Ogle-Welbourn
Directors Report for Social Care Practice and Performance

Contact Officer: Jonathan Lewis
New Vision for Early Years Services Including Children's Centres in
Peterborough

Contact Officer: Jonathan Lewis / Gary Perkins
Draft School Organisation Plan 2014/2015 - Delivering Local Places
for Local Children

Implementations of Ofsted School Improvement Inspection Action
Plan

14 July 2014

25 June Draft report
2 July Final report

Item

Meeting Date

CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
WORK PROGRAMME 2014/15

A further update report to be presented to Committee
in October.

Progress

UPDATED: 30 OCTOBER 2014

98

Contact Officer: Sue Westcott

Contact Officer: Jonathan Lewis
Directors Report for Social Care Practice and Performance

To scrutinise the progress of the portfolio of the Cabinet Member for
Education, Skills and University including 2014 unvalidated examination
results, Ofsted 16 – 19 Inspection and school to school improvement
developments

Portfolio Progress Report from Cabinet Member for Education, Skills
and University

Contact Officer: Jonathan Lewis / Adrian Chapman

Special Educational Needs and Disability Reforms

Contact Officer: Belinda Evans

To scrutinise the Children’s (Social Care) Services Statutory Complaints
Process (Children act 1989) Annual Report 2013 and make any necessary
recommendations.

Children’s (Social Care) Services Statutory Complaints Process
(Children act 1989) Annual Report 2013/2014

Contact Officer: Russell Waite / Jo Bramwell

Peterborough Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report (PSCB)
2013/14

8 September 2014

20 Aug Draft report
27 Aug Final report

Item

Meeting Date

UPDATED: 30 OCTOBER 2014

A further update report to be presented to Committee
in March 2015.

1. a route cause analysis which provides more detail
around Complaint causes, common issues and
what the service area plans to do to address the
issues and improve.
2. a report on the outcomes from the workshop held
in May 2014 to discuss what causes complaint
responses to be delayed.

Follow up report to be provided a the 5 January 2015
meeting to:

Progress

99

29 Oct Final report

22 Oct Draft report

10 November 2014

Contact Officer: Sue Westcott

Recruitment and Retention of Social Workers

Contact Officer: Jonathan Lewis

Contact Officer: Wendi Ogle-Welbourn
Pupil Premium

The Connecting Families Programme

Contact Officer: Jonathan Lewis / Claire George

Contact Officer: Wendi Ogle-Welbourn
Pupil Referral Service

Contact Officer: Sue Westcott
Children's Centres and Early Years Update

Contact Officer: Sharon Hawkins
Portfolio Progress Report from Cabinet Member for Children’s
Services

Contact Officer: Jonathan Lewis // Denham Hughes
Report from Corporate Parenting Chair

Performance Report on NEET / Raising the Participation Age

13 October 2014

24 Sept Draft report
1 Oct Final report

Item

Meeting Date

Progress

UPDATED: 30 OCTOBER 2014

100

22 Dec Final report

15 Dec Draft report

5 January 2015

Meeting Date

Contact Officers: Sue Westcott / Wendi Ogle-Welbourn / Jonathan
Lewis

Scrutiny in a Day – Recommendations Outcomes Report

Contact Officer: Lou Williams / Simon Green

Placement Strategy

Contact Officer: Belinda Evans

Children’s (Social Care) Services Statutory Complaints Process Follow up report from Annual Report 2013

Contact Officer: Pat Carrington, Principal/Head of Service

To scrutinise the role the City College has to play in delivering improved
educational and other outcomes for the city.

City College Peterborough

Contact officer: Adrian Chapman / Ian Phillips

Scrutiny in a Day – One Year On – Event Proposal

Contact Officer: Jonathan Lewis

Contact Officer: Sue Westcott
16 – 19 Ofsted Inspection Action Plan

Directors Report for Social Care Practice and Performance

Item

Progress

UPDATED: 30 OCTOBER 2014

101

25 Feb Final report

18 Feb Draft report

9 March 2015

(Joint Meeting of
the Scrutiny
Committees and
Commissions)
T.B.C.

7 or 9 Jan or 9
February 2015

Meeting Date

Contact Officer: Sue Westcott

Directors Report for Social Care Practice and Performance

Contact Officer: Jonathan Lewis / Adrian Chapman

Special Educational Needs and Disabilities Reforms Update

Contact Officer: Jonathan Lewis

To scrutinise the 2014 examination results, assess the impact of the action
plan to improve educational results and make any necessary
recommendations
Contact Officer: Jonathan Lewis
Free School Meals

Presentation of 2014 KS 4 & KS2 Validated Examination Results

Contact Officer: John Harrison/Steven Pilsworth

To scrutinise the Executive’s proposals for the Budget 2015/16 and
Medium Term Financial Plan.

Budget 2015/16 and Medium Term Financial Plan

Contact Officer: Sue Westcott

Directors Report for Social Care Practice and Performance

Item

Progress

UPDATED: 30 OCTOBER 2014

This page is intentionally left blank

102

